
 CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS  

 

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR SESSION 

321 WALNUT STREET, GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

TUESDAY, MARCH 02, 2021 – 7:00 PM 

Anyone wishing to address the city council regarding any topic on this agenda is requested to complete a 

card available at the city clerk's desk.  Speakers are respectfully requested to limit their comments to three 

(3) minutes. 

The city council prohibits the use of cell phones and other electronic devices which emit an audible sound 

during all meetings with the exception of law enforcement, fire and rescue or health care providers on 

call. Persons in violation may be requested to leave the meeting 

AGENDA 

Invocation & Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag - Pastor Pendergraft - Sacred Heart Catholic 

Roll Call 

Mayor to call on members of the audience wishing to address the Council on matters not on the Agenda. 

AWARDS & RECOGNITION 

1. Swearing-In of Citizen’s Advisory Committee 

2. Monarch City Proclamation 

3. AMIKids Clay County - Presentation 

CONSENT AGENDA 

All matters under the consent agenda are considered to be routine by the city council and will be enacted 

by one motion in the form listed below. There will be no separate discussion on these items. If discussion 

is desired, that item will be removed from the consent agenda and will be considered separately. Backup 

documentation and staff recommendations have been previously submitted to the city council on these 

items. 

4. Council approval of Chief Asdot to attend the FBINAA Annual Training Conference in Orlando, 

FL.  Derek Asdot 

5. Council approval of Chief Asdot to attend FPCA Summer Conference in Hollywood, FL.  Derek 

Asdot 

6. City Council approval of, and authorization for the Mayor, City Attorney and City Clerk to 

execute, Amendment #1 in the amount of $56,100.00 to the Design Loan Agreement for the 

Florida Department of Environmental Protection (FDEP), Drinking Water State Revolving Fund 

(SRF) Loan Application DW 100102 for $356,800.00, for the design of capital improvements to 

Page 1



March 02, 2021 Agenda Page 2 of 3 

 

 

the City's Water System.  This amendment increases the total loan / grant (50%) amount to 

$412,900.00.  Scott Schultz 

7. City Council approval of Scrivener’s Error to the April 16, 2019 Minutes  Kimberly Thomas 

8. City Council approval of funding in the amount of $24,270.30 to Jax Utilities Management for 

sewer connections to four parcels, piggybacking on City of Jacksonville Contract # 8258-

19  Scott Schultz 

9. City Council approval of street closure  Kimberly Thomas 

10. City Council approval of Invoices #1-4 in the amount of 120,014.80 to Mastry / Yanmar, for 

purchase of generators as part of the Hazard Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP), Federally-

Funded Subaward and Grant Agreement # H0297 / Project Number 4337-217-R, for 

$537,018.75, for Utility Mitigation and Generator Project to install generators on 17 of the City's 

lift stations.  Note:  The City has received 75% funding from HMGP.  Staff received an advance 

from HMGP in the amount of $333,578.20.  Scott Schultz 

11. City Council approval of Minutes from 2/02/2021 Regular Session Erin West 

12. City Council approval of Land Dedication for new roadway adjacent to Ruby Street  Michael 

Daniels 

13. City Council approval of Engagement Letter to retain the services of Nabors, Giblin & 

Nickerson, P. A. (“NG&N”) to assist with the annual non-ad valorem assessments for the 

Magnolia West subdivision’s solid waste and City wide stormwater programs.  Jim Arnold 

14. City Council approval of a change order #3 to KBT Contracting Corp to Construct a drive 

through shelter for the Food Pantry in the amount of $94,200.00. Steve Thomas 

15. City Council adoption of a Language Access Plan (LAP) for Limited English Proficiency (LEP) 

persons. Mike Null 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

16. First Public Hearing to take recommendations for a CDBG-CV Coronavirus Cycle grant 

application with the Florida Department of Economic Opportunity. Mike Null 

COUNCIL BUSINESS 

17. FMPA - March 2021 Bob Page 

18. First Reading of Ordinance O-05-2021, Amending Section 90-61 of the City Code to allow 

security and night-lights under certain circumstances. Mike Null 

19. City Manager and City Attorney Reports and/or Correspondence/Executive Summary Reports. 

20. City Council Reports and/or Correspondence. 

Adjournment 

 

Page 2



March 02, 2021 Agenda Page 3 of 3 

 

 

 

The City Council meets the first and third Tuesday of each month beginning at 7:00 p.m., unless 

otherwise scheduled.  Meetings are held in City Hall at 321 Walnut Street.  Video and audio 

recordings of the meetings are available in the City Clerk’s Office upon request. 

City may take action on any matter during this meeting, including items that are not set forth within 

this agenda. 

Minutes of the City Council meetings can be obtained from the City Clerk’s office.   The Meetings 

are usually recorded, but are not transcribed verbatim for the minutes.  Persons requiring a 

verbatim transcript may make arrangements with the City Clerk to duplicate the recordings, if 

available, or arrange to have a court reporter present at the meeting.  The cost of duplication and/or 

court reporter will be at the expense of the requesting party. 

Persons who wish to appeal any decision made by the City Council with respect to any matter 

considered at this meeting will need a record of the proceedings, and for such purpose may need to 

ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and 

evidence upon which the appeal is based.  The City is not responsible if the inhouse recording is 

incomplete for any reason. 

ADA NOTICE 

In accordance with Section 286.26, Florida Statutes, persons with disabilities needing special 

accommodations to participate in this meeting should contact the City Clerk’s office no later than 5:00 

p.m. on the day prior to the meeting. 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION: 

Pursuant to Section 286.0114, Florida Statutes, effective October 1, 2013, the public is invited to speak 

on any “proposition” before a board, commission, council, or appointed committee takes official action 

regardless of whether the issue is on the Agenda.  Certain exemptions for emergencies, ministerial acts, 

etc. apply.  This public participation does not affect the right of a person to be heard as otherwise provided 

by law. 

EXPARTE COMMUNICATIONS 

Oral or written exchanges (sometimes referred to as lobbying or information gathering) between a Council 

Member and others, including staff, where there is a substantive discussion regarding a quasijudicial 

decision by the City Council. The exchanges must be disclosed by the City Council so the public may 

respond to such exchanges before a vote is taken. 

 

Page 3



 

STAFF REPORT  
CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

TO:  Regular Council Meeting MEETING DATE: March 2, 2021 

FROM: Kimberly Thomas, Executive Assistant to the City Manager 

SUBJECT: Swearing-In of Citizen’s Advisory Committee 
 

BACKGROUND 

Applications were submitted and reviewed for the CAC, and the approved applications were given to 

Council for approval on February 16, 2021.  

FISCAL IMPACT 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 
 

Page 4

Item #1.



Proclamation 
 

 

WHEREAS,  The monarch butterfly is an iconic North American species whose multigenerational migration 

and metamorphosis from caterpillar to butterfly has captured the imagination of millions of 

Americans; and 
 

WHEREAS,  Monarch butterflies, as well as other butterfly species, bees, birds and bats, help move pollen 

from one plant to another, fertilizing flowers and making it possible for plants to produce food 

needed to feed people and wildlife; and 
 

WHEREAS,  20 years ago, more than one billion Eastern monarch butterflies migrated to Mexico, but over 

the last decade their numbers have declined by 80%; and 
 

WHEREAS,  An important part of the mission of the Garden Club of Green Cove Springs is to further educate 

their members and the public about environmental awareness and to teach our youth to respect 

and protect the environment; and 
 

WHEREAS,  Cities, towns and counties have a critical role to play to help save the monarch butterfly; and 
 

WHEREAS,  The City of Green Cove Springs in conjunction with the Garden Club of Green Cove Springs 

is playing a leadership role to bring together stakeholders in the community to work together 

to restore habitat for monarchs; and 
 

WHEREAS,  Every citizen of Green Cove Springs can make a difference for the monarch by planting native 

milkweed and nectar plants to provide habitat for the monarch and pollinators in locations where 

people live, work, learn, play and worship; and 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT PROCLAIMED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GREEN COVE 

SPRINGS, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

Section 1.      The City Council hereby proclaims Green Cove Springs as a Monarch City USA, and urge all 

residents of Green Cove Springs to do their part by planting and protecting native milkweed 

and nectar sources, so that monarch butterflies have the resources necessary to produce 

successive generations and sustain their spectacular migration through our City and our State. 

 
Section 2.         A true copy of this Proclamation shall be spread upon the Official Minutes of the City Council 

of the City of Green Cove Springs. 

 
DONE AND PROCLAIMED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, 

FLORIDA, IN REGULAR SESSION THIS 2ND DAY OF MARCH 2021. 

 

CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA 
 
 

B. Van Royal, Mayor  

ATTEST: 

 

Erin West, City Clerk 

 

 

 
Page 5

Item #2.



 

STAFF REPORT  
CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

TO:  Regular Session MEETING DATE: 03/02/2021 

FROM: Derek Asdot, Chief of Police 

SUBJECT: Council approval of Chief Asdot to attend the FBINAA Annual Training Conference in 

Orlando, FL. 
 

BACKGROUND 

Council approval of Chief Asdot to attend the 2021 FBINAA 57th National Training Conference at the 

Rosen Shingle Creek Hotel located in Orlando, FL from July 7-10, 2021. Registration fee is $475, and 

accommodations are $486. Total amount to be approved from council is $961. This is to be taken out of 

training account # 104-2021-5005410. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

Council approval of Chief Asdot to attend the FBINAA Annual Training Conference in Orlando, FL. 

Page 6

Item #4.



Page 7

Item #4.



Page 8

Item #4.



Page 9

Item #4.



Page 10

Item #4.



Page 11

Item #4.



Page 12

Item #4.



Page 13

Item #4.



Page 14

Item #4.



Page 15

Item #4.



Page 16

Item #4.



Page 17

Item #4.



Page 18

Item #4.



Page 19

Item #5.



Page 20

Item #5.



Page 21

Item #5.



Page 22

Item #5.



Page 23

Item #5.



Page 24

Item #5.



Page 25

Item #5.



Page 26

Item #5.



Page 27

Item #5.



Page 28

Item #5.



Page 29

Item #5.



Page 30

Item #5.



Page 31

Item #5.



Page 32

Item #5.



 

STAFF REPORT  
CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

TO:  Regular Session MEETING DATE: 03/02/2021 

FROM: Derek Asdot, Chief of Police 

SUBJECT: Council approval of Chief Asdot to attend FPCA Summer Conference in Hollywood, FL. 
 

BACKGROUND 

Council approval of Chief Asdot to attend the Florida Police Chief’s Association Summer Conference in 

Hollywood, FL from June 27-30, 2021. Registration fee is $400, and accommodations are $606.81. 

Total amount to be approved from council is $1,006.81. This is to be taken out of training account # 

104-2021-5005410. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

Council approval of Chief Asdot to attend FPCA Summer Conference in Hollywood, FL. 

Page 33

Item #5.



 

STAFF REPORT  
CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

TO:  City Council Regular Session MEETING DATE: March 2, 2021 

FROM: Scott Schultz, Assistant Water Utilities Director 

SUBJECT: City Council approval of, and authorization for the Mayor, City Attorney and City Clerk to 

execute, Amendment #1 in the amount of $56,100.00 to the Design Loan Agreement for 

the Florida Department of Environmental Protection (FDEP), Drinking Water State 

Revolving Fund (SRF) Loan Application DW 100102 for $356,800.00, for the design of 

capital improvements to the City's Water System.  This amendment increases the total loan / 

grant (50%) amount to $412,900.00. 
 

BACKGROUND 

On June 16, 2016 the City Council approved the Rate Study conducted by Staff and Mittauer & 

Associates.  

On March 21, 2017, Council approved a Task Order with Mittauer & Associates for $50,000.00 for 

development of a Water Master Plan. 

On June 19, 2018, the City Council approved the Water Master Plan conducted by Staff and Mittauer.  

The Master Plan included a thorough review of the existing Water Capital Improvement Program (CIP) 

and resulted in an update to the CIP.  As a result of the updated CIP, Staff requested an update to the 

Water portion of the Rate Study to evaluate financing options and alternatives to CIP financing. 

On September 4, 2018, City Council approved a Task Authorization with Mittauer & Associates for 

$12,000.00 to update the Water Rate Study.  

At the March 5, 2019 City Council meeting, Staff and Mittauer presented the updated Water Rate Study 

which was subsequently approved by the City Council.  The City Council directed staff to return with an 

Ordinance authorizing the borrowing of funds to complete the immediate and future CIP needs.  Staff 

was also directed to draft an RFP to secure a loan for the “Priority 1” immediate need CIP projects. 

The Priority 1, Reynolds Water System Improvements, total design and construction estimate is 

$1,370,000.00 

The Priority 2, Harbor Road, Bonaventure and Magnolia Point Cul-de-sac, total design and construction 

estimate is $4,850,000.00. 

The Priority 3, Reynolds High Service Pumps & Well 2 design and construction estimate is 

$2,500,000.00. 

The Priority 4, asbestos concrete (AC) pipe replacement. Design and construction estimate is 

$6,620,000.00 

The Priority 5, Governors Creek Water Main, design, and construction estimate is $360,000.00 

Design and permitting for Priorities 3-5 cost estimate is $1,424,000.00 

Page 34

Item #6.



Total 2019 Water CIP Cost Estimate is $17,124,000.00  

Council approved Ordinance No. O-07-2019 on First Reading as to Form Only on 3/19/19 which 

authorized staff to borrow up to $18,000,000.00 for capital improvements to the City's Water System. 

Council approved Ordinance No. O-07-2019 on Second and Final Reading on 4/2/19 which authorized 

staff to borrow up to $18,000,000.00 for capital improvements to the City's Water System 

On 6/18/19 Council approved staff to submit and authorized the mayor to execute a Request for 

Inclusion (RFI) to the FDEP-SRF Program for $356,800.00 in funding to design certain capital 

improvements to the City's Water System to be prepared to move into construction as the needs arise. 

On 10/15/2019 Council approved of and authorized the Mayor to execute associated documents for the 

actual loan application.  The FDEP-SRF Program has tentatively approved a 10-year loan with a 

principal amount of $356,800.00 with a "loan forgiveness" of 50% which would make the actual loan 

amount approximately $178,400.00 (there are some loan fees).  Final principal forgiveness and loan 

percentage rate will be determined at completion of loan processing.  

On 1/21/2020 Council approved, and the mayor executed the actual loan agreement. 

Since 1/21/2020 staff and Mittauer have been working on the three tasks, understanding that the 

pressure / flow improvements to the higher elevations in Magnolia Point would be the more complicated 

task. 

After several months of activity, the scope of work for this task has been finalized; 

Build a new water plant at the site of the old Bonaventure Water plant 

Connect the new plant with a 12" water main which will tie into the existing 12" water main on SR 16 

South, which goes down Randall Road, through the wetlands, and ties into the primary water main on 

Colonial Drive in Magnolia Point 

Remove all other connections from the 12" water main 

Staff have consulted with FDEP who have agreed to add the additional scope onto the current loan / 

grant agreement, which will allow for 50% grant funding. 

On 11/10/2020 Council authorized the City Manager to execute amendment #1 which would add 

$56,100.00 to the grant (50%) / loan.  This is for execution of the Amendment #1 Contract. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

$56,100.00 from the Water Department capital improvement budget.  

RECOMMENDATION 

Approve of, and authorize the Mayor, City Attorney and City Clerk to execute, Amendment #1 in the 

amount of $56,100.00 to the Design Loan Agreement for the Florida Department of Environmental 

Protection (FDEP), Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (SRF) Loan Application DW 100102 for 

$356,800.00, for the design of capital improvements to the City's Water System.  This amendment 

increases the total loan / grant (50%) amount to $412,900.00. 
 

Page 35

Item #6.



 1 

STATE REVOLVING FUND 
AMENDMENT 1 TO LOAN AGREEMENT DW100102 

CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS 

This amendment is executed by the STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF 
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Department) and the CITY OF GREEN COVE 
SPRINGS, FLORIDA, (Project Sponsor) existing as a local governmental entity under the laws 
of the State of Florida.  Collectively, the Department and the Project Sponsor shall be referred to 
as “Parties” or individually as “Party”. 

The Department and the Project Sponsor entered into a Drinking Water State Revolving Fund 
Loan Agreement, Number DW100102, authorizing a Loan amount of $356,800 excluding 
Capitalized Interest; and a Principal Forgiveness amount of $178,400; and 

The Project Sponsor is entitled to additional financing in the amount of $56,100, excluding 
Capitalized Interest; and 

Loan repayment activities need rescheduling to give the Project Sponsor additional time to 
complete design; and 

Certain provisions of the Agreement need revision and provisions need to be added to the 
Agreement. 

The Parties hereto agree as follows: 

1. Section 1.01 of the Agreement is amended to include the following definition: 

“Final Unilateral Amendment” shall mean the Loan Agreement unilaterally finalized by 
the Department after Loan Agreement and Project abandonment under Section 8.06 that 
establishes the final amortization schedule for the Loan. 

2. Subsection 2.03(1) of the Agreement is deleted and replaced as follows: 

(1) The financial assistance authorized pursuant to this Loan Agreement consists of the 
following: 

Federal Resources, Including State Match, Awarded to the Recipient Pursuant to this 
Agreement Consist of the Following: 

Federal 
Program 
Number 

Federal 
Agency 

CFDA 
Number CFDA Title 

Funding 
Amount 

State 
Appropriation 

Category 

FS98452218-0 EPA 66.468 

Capitalization 
Grants for 

Drinking Water 
State Revolving 

Fund 

$412,900 140129 

Page 36

Item #6.



 

 2 

 
3. Section 8.06 of the Agreement is deleted and replaced as follows: 

8.06. ABANDONMENT, TERMINATION OR VOLUNTARY CANCELLATION. 

Failure of the Project Sponsor to actively prosecute or avail itself of this Loan (including 
e.g. described  in para 1 and 2 below) shall constitute its abrogation and abandonment of the 
rights hereunder, and the Department may then, upon written notification to the Project Sponsor, 
suspend or terminate this Agreement. 

(1) Failure of the Project Sponsor to draw Loan proceeds within eighteen months after 
the effective date of this Agreement, or by the date set in Section 10.07 to establish the Loan 
Debt Service Account, whichever date occurs first. 

 
(2) Failure of the Project Sponsor, after the initial Loan draw, to draw any funds under 

the Loan Agreement for twenty-four months, without approved justification or demonstrable 
progress on the Project. 
 

Upon a determination of abandonment by the Department, the Loan will be suspended, 
and the Department will implement administrative close out procedures (in lieu of those in 
Section 4.02) and provide written notification of Final Unilateral Amendment to the Project 
Sponsor.  
 

In the event that following the execution of this Agreement, the Project Sponsor decides 
not to proceed with this Loan, this Agreement can be cancelled by the Project Sponsor, without 
penalty, if no funds have been disbursed.  

4. Additional financing in the amount of $56,100, excluding Capitalized Interest, is 
hereby awarded to the Project Sponsor. 

5. An interest rate of 1.71 percent per annum is established for the additional financing 
amount awarded in this amendment. 

6. The estimated principal amount of the Loan is hereby revised to $237,100, which 
consists of $234,500 authorized for disbursement to the Project Sponsor and $2,600 of 
Capitalized Interest.  This total consists of the following: 

(a) Original Agreement in the amount of $180,800, including $178,400 authorized for 
disbursement to the Project Sponsor and $2,400 of Capitalized Interest, at an interest rate of 1.71 
percent per annum; and 

(b) Amendment 1 in the amount of $56,300, including $56,100 authorized for 
disbursement to the Project Sponsor and $200 of Capitalized Interest, at an interest rate of 1.71 
percent per annum. 

7. An additional Loan Service Fee in the amount of $1,122, for a total of $4,690, is 
hereby estimated.  The fee represents two percent of the Loan amount excluding Capitalized 
Interest; that is, two percent of $234,500. 

Page 37

Item #6.



 

 3 

8. The Semiannual Loan Payment amount is hereby revised and shall be in the amount 
of $13,204.  Such payments shall be received by the Department on February 15, 2022 and 
semiannually thereafter on August 15 and February 15 of each year until all amounts due 
hereunder have been fully paid.  Until this Agreement is further amended, each Semiannual Loan 
Payment will be proportionally applied, after deduction of the Loan Service Fee is complete, 
toward repayment of the amounts owed on each incremental Loan amount at the date such 
payment is due. 

The Semiannual Loan Payment amount is based on the total amount owed of $241,790, 
which consists of the Loan principal plus the estimated Loan Service Fee. 

9. The Project Sponsor and the Department acknowledge that the actual cost of the 
Project has not been determined.  Project cost adjustments may be made as a result of mutually 
agreed upon Project changes.  Capitalized Interest will be recalculated based on actual dates and 
amounts of Loan disbursements.  If the Project Sponsor receives other governmental financial 
assistance for this Project, the costs funded by such other governmental assistance will not be 
financed by this Loan.  The Department shall establish the final Project costs after its final 
inspection of the Project records.  Changes in Project costs may also occur as a result of an audit. 

The estimated Project costs are revised as follows: 

CATEGORY PROJECT COSTS ($) 
Design costs 412,900 
Less Principal Forgiveness (178,400) 

SUBTOTAL (Loan Amount) 234,500 
Capitalized Interest 2,600 

TOTAL (Loan Principal Amount) 237,100 

10. The items scheduled under Section 10.07 of the Agreement are rescheduled as 
follows: 

(2) Completion of Project Design Activities is scheduled for August 15, 2021. 
 
(3) Establish the Loan Debt Service Account and begin Monthly Loan Deposits 

no later than August 15, 2021. 
 

(4) The first Semiannual Loan Payment in the amount of $13,204 shall be due 
February 15, 2022. 
 

11. Section 10.08 is added the Agreement as follows: 

10.08. SPECIAL CONDITION. 

Prior to the Department’s execution of this amendment, the Project Sponsor shall submit 
an updated Legal Opinion addressing the availability of Pledged Revenues, the right to increase 
rates, and subordination of the pledge. 

12. All other terms and provisions of the Loan Agreement shall remain in effect. 

Page 38

Item #6.



 

 4 

This Amendment 1 to Loan Agreement DW100102 may be executed in two or more 
counterparts, any of which shall be regarded as an original and all of which constitute but one 
and the same instrument.   

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Department has caused this amendment to the Loan 
Agreement to be executed on its behalf by the Secretary or Designee and the Project Sponsor has 
caused this amendment to be executed on its behalf by its Authorized Representative and by its 
affixed seal.  The effective date of this amendment shall be as set forth below by the Department. 

for 
CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS 

_________________________________________ 
Mayor 

Attest: Approved as to form and legal sufficiency: 

______________________________________ 
City Clerk 

______________________________________ 
City Attorney 

SEAL 

 

 

 

 

for 
STATE OF FLORIDA 

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 

________________________________________     _______________________ 
 Secretary or Designee          Date 

   
 

Page 39

Item #6.



 

STAFF REPORT  
CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

TO:  Regular Council Meeting MEETING DATE: March 2, 2021 

FROM: Kimberly Thomas, Executive Assistant to the City Manager 

SUBJECT: City Council approval of Scrivener’s Error to the April 16, 2019 Minutes 
 

BACKGROUND 

In researching the Council decision for Food Truck Friday logistics for 2019 events, staff found errors to 

the above minutes.  

FISCAL IMPACT 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

City Council approval of Scrivener’s Error to the April 16, 2019 Minutes 

 

Page 40

Item #7.



MINUTES OF THE APRIL 16, 2019 REGULAR SESSION 

GREEN COVE SPRINGS CITY COUNCIL 

 

 

Call to Order 

 

The regular session of the Green Cove Springs City Council was called to order Tuesday, April 

16, 2019, at 7:00 p.m. in the City Council Chambers, 321 Walnut Street, Green Cove Springs, 

Florida.  

 

Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag 

 

The invocation was given by Rev. Pernell, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the 

United States of America. 

 

Roll Call 

 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: 

Pamela J. Lewis 

B. Van Royal 

Roy M. Timberlake, Jr. 

Steven Kelley, Vice Mayor 

Constance W. Butler, Mayor  

 

 

 

STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT: 

L. J. Arnold, III, City Attorney 

Steve Kennedy, City Manager 

Kimberly Thomas, Interim City Clerk 

 

Mayor to call on members of the audience wishing to address 

the Council on matters not on the Agenda. 

 

Council recognized Ed Gaw 1 Elmore Street, Green Cove Springs, however he requested to wait 

until Public Hearing for O-08-2019 was addressed. 

 

Council recognized book titled “Cracker Gothic” written by local author Wanda Duncan.       

 

AWARDS & RECOGNITION 

 

Proclamation - National Public Safety Telecommunicators Week 

 

A MOTION WAS MADE BY COUNCIL MEMBER TIMBERLAKE TO APPROVE THE 

NATIONAL PUBLIC SAFETLY TELECOMMUNICATIONS WEEK PROCLAMATION. 

THE MOTION WAS SECONDED BY COUNCIL MEMBER LEWIS. THERE BEING NO 

FURTHER DISCUSSION, THE MOTION WAS APPROVED BY THE FOLLOWING ROLL 

CALL VOTE: AYES – COUNCIL MEMBERS PAMELA J. LEWIS, B. VAN ROYAL, ROY 

M. TIMBERLAKE, JR., STEVEN R. KELLEY, AND CONSTANCE W. BUTLER, MAYOR.  

NAYS – NONE. 

 

 

Page 41

Item #7.



April 16, 2019 Regular Session 

Page 2 of 4 

 

 

Council recognized new employees: Amanda Upton, Senior Police Secretary and Victoria 

McDaniel, Communications Officer  

 

Council recognized the Employee of the 2nd Quarter: Sharon Vincent, Communications Officer  

 

Council recognized the Retirement for Anna Marie Scott  Green Cove Springs Police 

Department  

 

Swearing in of New Officers: Bradford Camp, David Carpenter, Michael Crider, Ronnie Gann, 

David Hernandez, Christopher Ruoss, Tanasia Lovett-James, Erin Vineyard 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS  

 

1. Second and Final Reading of City Ordinance No. O-06-2019, an Ordinance 

amending Chapter 74 and creating Chapter 82 of the City Code or Ordinances 

pertaining to small wireless facilities in public rights-of-way. The Ordinance was 

read into the record by City Attorney Arnold.  

 

Mr. Arnold reviewed verbiage the Council requested to be added to the proposed 

Ordinance.   

 

Mayor Butler opened the Public Hearing. There being no further discussion the Public 

Hearing was closed.  

 

A MOTION WAS MADE BY COUNCIL MEMBER TIMBERLAKE TO APPROVE 

THE SECOND AND FINAL READING OF ORDINANCE NO. O-06-2019. THE 

MOTION WAS SECONDED BY VICE MAYOR KELLEY. THERE BEING NO 

FURTHER DISCUSSION, THE MOTION WAS APPROVED BY THE FOLLOWING 

ROLL CALL VOTE: AYES – COUNCIL MEMBERS PAMELA J. LEWIS, B. VAN 

ROYAL, ROY M. TIMBERLAKE, JR., STEVEN R. KELLEY, AND CONSTANCE W. 

BUTLER, MAYOR.  NAYS – NONE. 

 

Council Member Timberlake took a moment to thank Mr. Arnold and staff for changes 

made to Ordinance.  

 

2. Second and Final Reading of City Ordinance No. O-08-2019, an Ordinance 

amending City Code Section 62-138(2) which allows the possession, consumption 

or serving of beer and wine at City sponsored events in Spring Park under limited 

conditions. The Ordinance was read into the record by City Attorney Arnold.  

 

Mayor Butler opened the Public Hearing. There being no further discussion the Public 

Hearing was closed.  

 

Mr. Gaw gave an update of how the first two Food Truck Friday dates of 2019 had 

exceeded expectations. Moving food trucks to Spring Street and adding officers had been 

Mr. Gaw stated that moving the food trucks to Springs Street and adding officers was a 

Page 42

Item #7.



April 16, 2019 Regular Session 

Page 3 of 4 

 

 

great addition to the Event’s success. Lt. Guzman confirmed how smooth and without 

incident the events had been. He did however mention a concern with citizens being 

unsure of the drinking zone on Walnut Street due to the placement of the signage.  

 

A MOTION WAS MADE BY COUNCIL MEMBER TIMBERLAKE TO APPROVE 

THE SECOND AND FINAL READING OF ORDINANCE NO. O-08-2019. THE 

MOTION WAS SECONDED BY COUNCIL MEMBER LEWIS. THERE BEING NO 

FURTHER DISCUSSION, THE MOTION WAS APPROVED BY THE FOLLOWING 

ROLL CALL VOTE: AYES – COUNCIL MEMBERS PAMELA J. LEWIS, B. VAN 

ROYAL, ROY M. TIMBERLAKE, JR., STEVEN R. KELLEY, AND CONSTANCE W. 

BUTLER, MAYOR.  NAYS – NONE. 

 

CONSENT AGENDA 
1. City Council approval on minutes for Council Regular Session March 19, 2019. 

2. City Council approval of street closures and waiver of rental fees for the 2019 Law 

Enforcement Memorial Ceremony on May 8, 2019 in Spring Park.  

3. City Council approval of Memorandums of Understanding with Jim Craft and 

Kevin Craft for the 2019 Memorial Day RiverFest Celebration  

4. City Council approval of Training Request for Lt. Guzman, Lt. Hines, Det. 

Patterson to attend Internal Affairs Investigation Training April 22, 2019  April 26, 

2019.  

5. City Council approval of utilization of the Police Department's Forfeiture Fund in 

support of the countywide distribution of the annual Safe & DrugFree Schools 

Calendar project sponsored by Clay Action Coalition Incorporated in the amount 

of $300.00.  

6. A Resolution in Support of the City's Application for Department of 

Transportation's Local Area Project (LAP) Certification and Funding for a sidewalk 

project along MLK JR., Boulevard from Palmetto Avenue to the Vera Francis Hall 

7. City Council approval to use Synagro for wastewater residuals (sludge) dewatering 

under a piggyback contract with Pasco County in an amount not to exceed $30,000 

for the second half of Fiscal Year (FY) 2019.  

8. City Council approval of, and authorization for the Mayor to execute, Amendment 

#1 to the FDEP SRF Loan # 100401 for the Design, Permitting and Sanitary Sewer 

Evaluation Survey (SSES) portion of the improvements to the City's wastewater & 

reclaimed water Capital Improvement Program, lowering the total overall project 

cost / loan by $145,651.00  

9. Temporary Agreement for Building Plan Review Services with CodesABC, Inc  

10. City Council Approval of the Job Description and Pay Grade Placement for a Police 

Records Technician.   

11. City Council approval of a purchase order in the amount of $76,810.00 to Hooper 

Corporation to install underground wire and switchgear and remove old overhead 

infrastructure on Pilot Drive to relocate utilities as required for construction of the 

First Coast Expressway.  

 

A MOTION WAS MADE BY COUNCIL MEMBER TIMBERLAKE TO APPROVE 

THE CONSENT AGENDA. THE MOTION WAS SECONDED BY COUNCIL 

Page 43

Item #7.



April 16, 2019 Regular Session 

Page 4 of 4 

 

 

MEMBER LEWIS. THERE BEING NO FURTHER DISCUSSION, THE MOTION WAS 

APPROVED BY THE FOLLOWING ROLL CALL VOTE:  AYES – COUNCIL 

MEMBERS PAMELA J. LEWIS, B. VAN ROYAL, ROY M. TIMBERLAKE, JR., 

STEVEN R. KELLEY, AND CONSTANCE W. BUTLER, MAYOR.  NAYS – NONE. 

 

COUNCIL BUSINESS 

 

1. FMPA Presentation  

 

Mr. Page introduced Jacob Williams, General Manager and CEO with FUMP who 

presented a draft and gave an overview of the CROD Agreement. Discussion 

followed.  

 

2. City Manager and City Attorney Reports and/or Correspondence.  

 

The City Manager and City Attorney made comments regarding various city activities, 

events, operations, and projects. 

 

Mr. Kennedy introduced Kimberly Morgan, Clay County Tourism who gave an 

overview of what Tourism does for Clay County. She explains how tourism works 

and discussion followed.  

 

a. Executive Summary Reports  March 2019 

  

3. City Council Reports and/or Correspondence. 

 

The City Council made comments regarding various city activities, events, operations, 

and projects. 

 

 

 

Adjournment. 

 

There being no further business to come before the City Council, the meeting was adjourned at 

9:30 p.m. 

 

      CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

 

              

      Constance W. Butler, Mayor 

Attest: 

 

       

Kimberly Thomas, Interim City Clerk 

Page 44

Item #7.



 

STAFF REPORT  
CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

TO:  City Council Regular Session MEETING DATE: February 2, 2021 

FROM: Scott Schultz, Assistant Water Utilities Director 

SUBJECT: City Council approval of funding in the amount of $24,270.30 to Jax Utilities Management 

for sewer connections to four parcels, piggybacking on City of Jacksonville Contract # 

8258-19  
 

BACKGROUND 

The water department routinely provides sewer service to vacant parcels in our service territory by 

excavating down to existing sewer lines and constructing a tie-in.  Sometimes the depth of the sewer 

lines exceeds the capabilities of our existing equipment, requires wellpointing or trench boxes, or some 

combination thereof.  In these instances we solicit pricing from contractors which specialize in these 

deep lines and have the proper construction and safety equipment. 

Over the last three years Jax Utilities Management (JUM) has been one of the only contractors to timely 

provide estimates and in all instances have been the lowest cost.  JUM has a service contract with the 

City of Jacksonville for these types of repairs primarily for stormwater, but the process is identical for 

sewer.  Staff requests authorization to piggyback on this contract to timely provide sewer service to the 

lots described in the attached quote. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

$24,270.30 (includes 10% discount for completing all four) from the Wastewater Department Line 

Extensions budget.  These costs are reimbursed by the parcel owners.  

RECOMMENDATION 

Approve funding in the amount of $24,270.30 to Jax Utilities Management for sewer connections to four 

parcels, piggybacking on City of Jacksonville Contract # 8258-19 

 

Page 45

Item #8.



Estimate
Date

2/17/2021

Estimate #

04-1157A

Name / Address

City of Green Cove Springs
321 Walnut Street
Green Cove Springs, FL  32043

Ship To

Jax Utilities Management, Inc.
8812 Alton Avenue
Jacksonville, Florida 32211

Charles Freshwater ... Office:855-0111 Cell:813-3534

904-855-0111 FAX 904-855-0117

jaxutilities@bellsouth.net

Total

Description Qty Cost Total

1104-1108 Center Street

9' Deep - 8" PVC x 6" Sewer Service - Asphalt, Seed and Mulch
Included

1 10,380.00 10,380.00

405 Melrose

7.5' Deep - 8" PVC x 6" Sewer Service - Curb, Asphalt, Seed and
Mulch Included

1 8,658.00 8,658.00

* JUM will contact Daryl to tap water line while on the job

St. Johns Forest
7.5' Deep - 8" PVC x 10" Sewer Service - Sidewalk, Seed and Mulch
Included

1 7,929.00 7,929.00

*10% Discount if all three services are performed at once

$26,967.00

Page 46

Item #8.



Page 47

Item #8.



Page 48

Item #8.



Page 49

Item #8.



Page 50

Item #8.



Page 51

Item #8.



Page 52

Item #8.



Page 53

Item #8.



Page 54

Item #8.



Page 55

Item #8.



Page 56

Item #8.



Page 57

Item #8.



Page 58

Item #8.



Page 59

Item #8.



Page 60

Item #8.



Page 61

Item #8.



Page 62

Item #8.



Page 63

Item #8.



Page 64

Item #8.



Page 65

Item #8.



Page 66

Item #8.



Page 67

Item #8.



Page 68

Item #8.



Page 69

Item #8.



Page 70

Item #8.



Page 71

Item #8.



Page 72

Item #8.



Page 73

Item #8.



Page 74

Item #8.



Page 75

Item #8.



Page 76

Item #8.



Page 77

Item #8.



Page 78

Item #8.



Page 79

Item #8.



Page 80

Item #8.



Page 81

Item #8.



Page 82

Item #8.



Page 83

Item #8.



Page 84

Item #8.



Page 85

Item #8.



Page 86

Item #8.



Page 87

Item #8.



Page 88

Item #8.



Page 89

Item #8.



Page 90

Item #8.



Page 91

Item #8.



Page 92

Item #8.



Page 93

Item #8.



Page 94

Item #8.



Page 95

Item #8.



Page 96

Item #8.



Page 97

Item #8.



Page 98

Item #8.



Page 99

Item #8.



Page 100

Item #8.



Page 101

Item #8.



Page 102

Item #8.



Page 103

Item #8.



Page 104

Item #8.



Page 105

Item #8.



Page 106

Item #8.



Page 107

Item #8.



Page 108

Item #8.



Page 109

Item #8.



Page 110

Item #8.



Page 111

Item #8.



Page 112

Item #8.



Page 113

Item #8.



Page 114

Item #8.



Page 115

Item #8.



Page 116

Item #8.



Page 117

Item #8.



Page 118

Item #8.



Page 119

Item #8.



Page 120

Item #8.



Page 121

Item #8.



Page 122

Item #8.



Page 123

Item #8.



Page 124

Item #8.



Page 125

Item #8.



Page 126

Item #8.



Page 127

Item #8.



Page 128

Item #8.



Page 129

Item #8.



Page 130

Item #8.



Page 131

Item #8.



Page 132

Item #8.



Page 133

Item #8.



Page 134

Item #8.



Page 135

Item #8.



Page 136

Item #8.



Page 137

Item #8.



Page 138

Item #8.



Page 139

Item #8.



Page 140

Item #8.



Page 141

Item #8.



Page 142

Item #8.



Page 143

Item #8.



Page 144

Item #8.



Page 145

Item #8.



Page 146

Item #8.



Page 147

Item #8.



Page 148

Item #8.



Page 149

Item #8.



Page 150

Item #8.



Page 151

Item #8.



Page 152

Item #8.



Page 153

Item #8.



Page 154

Item #8.



Page 155

Item #8.



Page 156

Item #8.



Page 157

Item #8.



Page 158

Item #8.



Page 159

Item #8.



Page 160

Item #8.



Page 161

Item #8.



Page 162

Item #8.



Page 163

Item #8.



Page 164

Item #8.



Page 165

Item #8.



Page 166

Item #8.



Page 167

Item #8.



Page 168

Item #8.



Page 169

Item #8.



Page 170

Item #8.



Page 171

Item #8.



Page 172

Item #8.



Page 173

Item #8.



Page 174

Item #8.



Page 175

Item #8.



Page 176

Item #8.



Page 177

Item #8.



Page 178

Item #8.



Page 179

Item #8.



Page 180

Item #8.



Page 181

Item #8.



Page 182

Item #8.



Page 183

Item #8.



Page 184

Item #8.



Page 185

Item #8.



Page 186

Item #8.



Page 187

Item #8.



Page 188

Item #8.



Page 189

Item #8.



Page 190

Item #8.



Page 191

Item #8.



Page 192

Item #8.



Page 193

Item #8.



Page 194

Item #8.



Page 195

Item #8.



Page 196

Item #8.



Page 197

Item #8.



Page 198

Item #8.



Page 199

Item #8.



Page 200

Item #8.



Page 201

Item #8.



Page 202

Item #8.



Page 203

Item #8.



Page 204

Item #8.



Page 205

Item #8.



Page 206

Item #8.



Page 207

Item #8.



Page 208

Item #8.



Page 209

Item #8.



Page 210

Item #8.



Page 211

Item #8.



Page 212

Item #8.



Page 213

Item #8.



Page 214

Item #8.



Page 215

Item #8.



Page 216

Item #8.



Page 217

Item #8.



Page 218

Item #8.



Page 219

Item #8.



Page 220

Item #8.



Page 221

Item #8.



Page 222

Item #8.



Page 223

Item #8.



Page 224

Item #8.



Page 225

Item #8.



Page 226

Item #8.



Page 227

Item #8.



Page 228

Item #8.



Page 229

Item #8.



Page 230

Item #8.



Page 231

Item #8.



Page 232

Item #8.



Page 233

Item #8.



Page 234

Item #8.



Page 235

Item #8.



Page 236

Item #8.



Page 237

Item #8.



Page 238

Item #8.



Page 239

Item #8.



Page 240

Item #8.



Page 241

Item #8.



Page 242

Item #8.



Page 243

Item #8.



Page 244

Item #8.



Page 245

Item #8.



Page 246

Item #8.



Page 247

Item #8.



Page 248

Item #8.



Page 249

Item #8.



Page 250

Item #8.



Page 251

Item #8.



Page 252

Item #8.



Page 253

Item #8.



Page 254

Item #8.



Page 255

Item #8.



Page 256

Item #8.



Page 257

Item #8.



Page 258

Item #8.



Page 259

Item #8.



Page 260

Item #8.



Page 261

Item #8.



Page 262

Item #8.



Page 263

Item #8.



Page 264

Item #8.



Page 265

Item #8.



Page 266

Item #8.



Page 267

Item #8.



Page 268

Item #8.



Page 269

Item #8.



Page 270

Item #8.



Page 271

Item #8.



Page 272

Item #8.



Page 273

Item #8.



Page 274

Item #8.



Page 275

Item #8.



Page 276

Item #8.



Page 277

Item #8.



Page 278

Item #8.



Page 279

Item #8.



Page 280

Item #8.



Page 281

Item #8.



Page 282

Item #8.



Page 283

Item #8.



Page 284

Item #8.



Page 285

Item #8.



Page 286

Item #8.



Page 287

Item #8.



Page 288

Item #8.



Page 289

Item #8.



Page 290

Item #8.



Page 291

Item #8.



Page 292

Item #8.



Page 293

Item #8.



Page 294

Item #8.



Page 295

Item #8.



Page 296

Item #8.



Page 297

Item #8.



Page 298

Item #8.



Page 299

Item #8.



Page 300

Item #8.



Page 301

Item #8.



Page 302

Item #8.



Page 303

Item #8.



Page 304

Item #8.



Page 305

Item #8.



Page 306

Item #8.



Page 307

Item #8.



 

STAFF REPORT  
CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

TO:  Regular Meeting MEETING DATE: February 16, 2021 

FROM: Kimberly Thomas, Executive Assistant to the City Manager 

SUBJECT: City Council approval of street closure  Kimberly Thomas 
 

BACKGROUND 

Hope Chessel has requested to close one block of Gum Street between Palmetto and Pine, directly next 

to Good Time Charlies. The purpose is to hold a pet adoption in the already designated space and move 

the normal craft vendors to the blocked area for that date only.  

FISCAL IMPACT 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

City Council approval of street closure. 
 

Page 308

Item #9.



Page 309

Item #9.



Page 310

Item #9.



Page 311

Item #9.



Page 312

Item #9.



Page 313

Item #9.



 

STAFF REPORT  
CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

TO:  City Council Regular Session MEETING DATE: March 2, 2021 

FROM: Scott Schultz, Asst. Water Utilities Director 

SUBJECT: City Council approval Invoices #1-4 in the amount of 120,014.80 to Mastry / Yanmar, for 

purchase of generators as part of the Hazard Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP), Federally-

Funded Subaward and Grant Agreement # H0297 / Project Number 4337-217-R, for 

$537,018.75, for Utility Mitigation and Generator Project to install generators on 17 of the 

City's lift stations.  Note:  The City has received 75% funding from HMGP.  Staff received 

an advance from HMGP in the amount of $333,578.20.  
 

BACKGROUND 

On 8/21/2018 Council ratified the submittal by staff for an HMGP grant application for installation of 
generators at 17 of the City's lift stations. The total estimated cost of the project was $876,425.00.  The City 
has received a grant amount of $537,018.75, or 75% of the revised estimated project cost of 
$716,025.00.  This project must be complete by February 28, 2022. 
 
On 2/4/2020 Council approved of and authorized the mayor to execute the actual contract. 
 

On 11/10/2020 the City Council approved of, and authorized funding in the amount of 348,768.00 to 

Mastry / Yanmar to purchase of generators as part of the Hazard Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP), 

Federally-Funded Subaward and Grant Agreement # H0297 / Project Number 4337-217-R, for 

$537,018.75, for Utility Mitigation and Generator Project to install generators on 17 of the City's lift 

stations.  Note:  The City has received 75% funding from HMGP.  Staff received an advance from 

HMGP in the amount of $333,578.20.  

FISCAL IMPACT 

$ 120,014.80 from the FY 2021 wastewater budget. 
 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

Approve of Invoices #1-4 in the amount of 120,014.80 to Mastry / Yanmar, for purchase of generators as 

part of the Hazard Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP), Federally-Funded Subaward and Grant 

Agreement # H0297 / Project Number 4337-217-R, for $537,018.75, for Utility Mitigation and 

Generator Project to install generators on 17 of the City's lift stations.  Note:  The City has received 75% 

funding from HMGP.  Staff received an advance from HMGP in the amount of $333,578.20.  

Page 314

Item #10.



Page 315

Item #10.



Page 316

Item #10.



Page 317

Item #10.



Page 318

Item #10.



Page 319

Item #10.



 CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS  

 

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR SESSION 

321 WALNUT STREET, GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 02, 2021 – 7:00 PM 

MINUTES 

Invocation & Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag - Pastor Pope, Springs Baptist Church 

Roll Call 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: Mayor Van Royal, Vice Mayor Ed Gaw (via phone), Council 

Member Connie Butler, Council Member Matt Johnson, Council Member Steven Kelley 

 

STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT: L.J. Arnold, III, City Attorney, Steve Kennedy, City Manager, Mike 

Null, Assistant City Manager, Erin West, City Clerk 

Mayor to call on members of the audience wishing to address the Council on matters not on the Agenda. 

1. Stan Kinmonth 194 Malley Cove Ln, Fleming Island speaks to the Council concerning the 

MVPA First Florida Chapter event being held at Reynolds Park.  Mr. Kinmonth advises the 

group is wanting to see about a lower major event fee and a waiver of the performance bond. 

Emergency motion to waive the security bond for the MVPA First Florida Chapter Swap 

Meet and to reduce the major event fee from $500 to $250 while still requiring the 

indemnity agreement and insurance requirement. 

Motion made by Council Member Kelley, Seconded by Council Member Butler. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Royal, Vice Mayor Gaw, Council Member Butler, Council Member 

Johnson, Council Member Kelley 

Emergency motion to approve the event being put on by the MVPA. 

Motion made by Council Member Butler, Seconded by Council Member Kelley. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Royal, Vice Mayor Gaw, Council Member Butler, Council Member 

Johnson, Council Member Kelley 

2. Felicia Hampshire 508 Franklin ST, GCS speaks to the Council sharing the plans for the 20th 

Annual Soul Food and Music Festival. 

AWARDS & RECOGNITION 

1. Proclamation - Black History Month 

 

Mayor Royal calls the staff to the front and reads the Black History Month Proclamation. 

Mayor Royal presents the proclamation to Sgt. Kimberly Miller who speaks and announces her 

retirement from the Green Cove Springs Police Department. 

Council Member Butler invites Mr. Hubert Robinson to speak.  Mr. Robinson is in the Reserves 

of the Marine Corps.  He advised he is working to become a film maker and is very interested in 

making a movie about Augusta Savage. 

Page 320

Item #11.



February 02, 2021 Minutes Page 2 of 4 

 

 

Mayor Royal asks Ms. Henrietta Francis to speak.  Ms. Francis advises there are 3 remaining 

teachers from Dunbar High School that could not attend the meeting but will be receiving the 

proclamation and introduces former students of Dunbar High, who were taught by those 

teachers. 

 

Motion to approve the Black History Month Proclamation. 
Motion made by Council Member Kelley, Seconded by Council Member Butler. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Royal, Council Member Butler, Council Member Johnson, Council Member 

Kelley 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

2. Second and Final Reading of Ordinance No. O-01-2021, an Ordinance amending Chapter 90 of 

the City Code Article II Electric Utility, Division 2.  Service Applications and Contracts by 

amending Section 90-24 entitled “Utility Payment Extensions” Marlena Guthrie 

City Attorney Arnold reads Ordinance No. O-01-2021 by title. 

Finance Director, Marlena Guthrie presents and explains the Ordinance. 

Mayor Royal opens the public hearing. 

Following no public comment, the public hearing is closed. 

Motion to approve Ordinance No. O-01-2021, an Ordinance amending Chapter 90 of the 

City Code Article II Electric Utility, Division 2. Service Applicants and Contracts by 

amending Section 90-24 entitles Utility Payment Extensions. 
Motion made by Council Member Johnson, Seconded by Council Member Butler. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Royal, Vice Mayor Gaw, Council Member Butler, Council Member 

Johnson, Council Member Kelley 

3. First Reading of Ordinance No. O-16-2020, amending Section 101-5 to add new definitions and 

revise definitions for lot width and setback, establishing Section 101-160 concerning flag lot 

requirements, and amending Sections 113-131 and 113-132 to revise access 

requirements.  Michaels Daniels 

City Attorney Arnold reads Ordinance No. O-16-2020 by title. 

Development Services Director, Michael Daniels presents and explains the Ordinance. 

Mayor Royal opens the public hearing. 

Joe Sobotta 212 North St, GCS questions the flag lot ownership. 

Discussion follows Mr. Sobotta’s question. 

Following no further public comment, the public hearing is closed. 

Council discussion follows. 

Motion to approve the first reading of Ordinance No. O-16-2020, amending City Code 

Chapter 101, Article I; establishing Chapter 101, Article II, Division 3, Section 101-160 

Flag Lots; and amending Chapter 113, Article II, Division 4 as to form and legality. 

Motion made by Council Member Johnson, Seconded by Council Member Butler. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Royal, Vice Mayor Gaw, Council Member Butler, Council Member 

Johnson, Council Member Kelley 

 

Page 321

Item #11.



February 02, 2021 Minutes Page 3 of 4 

 

 

Blue Card: George Giouvakos 1149 Idlewild Ave, GCS speaks to the Council concerning the 

pulling of permits to trim trees on his property due to a high winds at the beginning of December 

2020.  The high winds resulted in a tree falling through a roof. 

Council discussion follows. 

CONSENT AGENDA 

All matters under the consent agenda are considered to be routine by the city council and will be enacted 

by one motion in the form listed below. There will be no separate discussion on these items. If discussion 

is desired, that item will be removed from the consent agenda and will be considered separately. Backup 

documentation and staff recommendations have been previously submitted to the city council on these 

items. 

Mayor Royal pulls Item 13. 

Motion to approve Consent Agenda Items 4 through 15 minus 13. 

Motion made by Council Member Kelley, Seconded by Council Member Johnson. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Royal, Vice Mayor Gaw, Council Member Butler, Council Member 

Johnson, Council Member Kelley 

4. City Council approval of Minutes from 1/05/2021 and 1/19/2021 Regular Sessions. Erin West 

5. City Council approval of funding, and authorization for the City Manager to execute, a task order 

in the amount of $696,500.00 to Mittauer & Associates for FDEP Grant / Loan Administration, 

Construction Material Review and Approval, Construction Inspection and Administration, SRF 

Davis-Bacon and American Iron and Steel monitoring requirements, providing Resident 

Construction Inspector, Start-Up Services, and As-Built / O&M Manual Development for the 

Phase II Harbor Road Advanced Wastewater Treatment Facility.  Scott Schultz 

6. City Council approval of Pay Application #5 to KBT Contracting Corp in the amount of 

$59,234.40 for the ASACC Library Building project. Steve Thomas 

7. Friends of Augusta Savage "BHM" Community Outreach  Kim Thomas 

8. City Council approval of, and authorization for the Mayor to execute, Disbursement Request #9 

in the amount of $19,500.00 to the Design Loan Agreement for the Florida Department of 

Environmental Protection (FDEP), Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (SRF) Loan 

Application DW 100102 for $356,800.00, for the design of capital improvements to the City's 

Water System.  This is the final invoice for the Magnolia Point Cul-de-Sac Pressure 

Improvement portion of the overall project.  Scott Schultz 

9. City Council approval of funding in the amount of $32,910.15 to Gresco for underground boring 

conduit for the Electric Department. Scott Schultz 

10. City Council approval to surplus aluminum roof from pipe storage building at the Harbor Road 

WWTF. Scott Schultz 

11. City Council approval to surplus aluminum carport removed from the Old Police Department. 

Scott Schultz 

Page 322

Item #11.



February 02, 2021 Minutes Page 4 of 4 

 

 

12. City Council approval of Pay Request #5 in the amount of $112,247.25 to General Underground 

for Bid Award LC 2020-06, Reynolds Water System Improvements in the amount of 

$685,724.00 (Base Bid), and Alternate #1 (water & sewer extension to MOBRO) in the amount 

of $314,275.00 for a total amount of $1,000,449.00. Scott Schultz 

13. Review of Revised Site Development Plan for Harbor Road Wastewater Treatment 

Facility  Michael Daniels, Scott Schultz 

Mayor Royal advises he pulled this item just to clarify the length of 6ft or 8ft. 

Water Utility Director, Scott Schultz advises the correct length is 8ft. 

Motion to approve Consent Agenda Item 13 

Motion made by Council Member Kelley, Seconded by Council Member Butler. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Royal, Vice Mayor Gaw, Council Member Butler, Council Member 

Johnson, Council Member Kelley 

14. City Council approval of a purchase order to Danella Construction in the amount of $125,590 to 

install underground conduit for Electric system improvements. Andy Yeager 

15. City Council approval of adjustments to the Electric Department Wages.  Steve Kennedy 

COUNCIL BUSINESS 

16. FMPA - February 2021 Bob Page 

Mr. Page gave an overview of February and discussion followed. 

17. City Manager and City Attorney Reports and/or Correspondence/Executive Summary Reports. 

The City Manager and City Attorney made comments regarding various city activities, events, 

operations, and projects. 

18. City Council Reports and/or Correspondence. 

The City Council made comments regarding various city activities, events, operations, and 

projects. 

Adjournment 

There being no further business to come before the City Council, the meeting was adjourned at 8:53 

p.m. 

 

 CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

 
 

 B. Van Royal, Mayor 

  

Attest:  

 
 

Erin West, City Clerk  

 

Page 323

Item #11.



 

STAFF REPORT  
CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

TO:  Regular Meeting MEETING DATE: March 2, 2021 

FROM: Michael Daniels 

SUBJECT: City Council approval of Land Dedication for new roadway adjacent to Ruby Street 
 

BACKGROUND 

In November 2020, Clay County Habitat submitted an application for a lot split for parcel #017053-000-

00 which is located at 314 Ruby Street.  During the review of the request, City staff determined that, due 

to the narrowness of the existing roadway on Ruby Street, that in order to be able to complete a lot split, 

the parcel would need to be split parallel to Ruby Street  (see attached surveys) and a new roadway 

would need to be constructed on the east side of Ruby Street, from the existing asphalt driveway and 

extending 60' to the east to provide road frontage for the two newly created lots.  As a result, the 

applicant is requesting to dedicate the northern portion of the subject property to the City for the creation 

of a new road.  The new roadway plans and construction will be completed by the applicant and 

approved by the City.   In addition, the applicant will convey to the City the property by warranty deed 

which will be recorded in the Official County Records.  The roadway and the conveyance shall be 

completed prior to issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy for the new single-family houses. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

Approval of Land Dedication for new Roadway adjacent to Ruby Street 
 

Page 324

Item #12.



Developer Agreement 
("LAND DEDICATION FOR ROADWAY CONSTRUCTION") 
 

 

1 
 

     
 

DEVELOPER AGREEMENT 
("LAND DEDICATION FOR ROADWAY 

CONSTRUCTION") 
 
 

                      
      

            
         

 
         

            

      

 

 

 
   

 
 

      
 

 
 

   

  

 
            

       

 
       

    
 

 
      

  
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and promises 

contained herein, the parties agree as follows: 
 

1.  RECITALS 

All representation above are true and correct and incorporated herein. 

 

 

2. ROADWAY SPECIFICATIONS 

a. Roadway shall connect to the existing asphalt driveway as shown on Exhibit A, 

Boundary Survey and extend for 60’. 

meeting the specifications as set forth in Paragraph 2 below.
  WHEREAS, the Developer shall be required to construct the city owned roadway 

hereafter.
owned roadway  meeting  the  specifications as set  forth in Paragraph  2 within  12  months 

  WHEREAS, the Developer shall be required to d e s i g n   a n d construct the city 

mutual understandings and undertakings regarding the property development; and
  WHEREAS, the parties wish to enter into this Agreement setting forth their 

forth in Chapter 117, Article II, Division 3 of the City Code; and
the  permitting  of  two  single  family  homes  meeting  the  density  control  requirements  as  set 

  WHEREAS, the dedication and construction of the proposed roadway will allow for 

and
06-26-017053-000-00 be dedicated to the City for the construction of a city owned roadway;

  WHEREAS, Developer desires that the Property, which is a portion of parcel #38- 

017053-000-00 for the development of two single family homes; and
  WHEREAS, the Developer has submitted an application to split parcel # 38-06-26- 

06-26-017053-000-00; and

  WHEREAS, the DEVELOPER is developing certain land within the CITY on parcel # 38- 

(hereinafter referred to as "Property"); and

Florida, and described in Exhibit "A" attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference

  WHEREAS, Developer owns lands located in Green Cove Springs, Clay County, 

Springs,a Florida municipal corporation, hereinafter referred to as “City".
Profit Corporation, hereinafter referred to as "Developer(s)", and the City of Green Cove 
March, 2021, by and between, Clay County Habitat for Humanity Inc., a Florida Not For 

  THIS DEVELOPER AGREEMENT is made and entered into this 2nd day of 

Page 325

Item #12.



Developer Agreement 
("LAND DEDICATION FOR ROADWAY CONSTRUCTION") 
 

 

2 
 

b. Roadway shall be a minimum of 12’ wide with 6” thick fiber with 3,000 PSI 

Concrete. 

c. A minimum of 4 pipe bollards shall be placed at the end of the roadway. 

d. The roadway shall be constructed within 12 months of the approval of the 

Developer’s Agreement. 

e. Guarantees and Sureties as set forth in Chapter 101, Article II, Division 5, 

Subdivision V shall be provided.  

 

3. IMPROVEMENT COMPLETION 

Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary the DEVELOPER shall complete all 

improvements to the roadway to the written satisfaction of the CITY.  Furthermore, the 

DEVELOPER shall convey the subject roadway to the City by warranty deed with title 

insurance for an amount of no less than $10,000 within 15 days of final acceptance by 

the CITY.  The CITY shall not approve a Certification of Occupancy until the CITY 

approves all roadway infrastructure plans and construction is completed.   

 

4. STANDARDS OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICE  

 The DEVELOPER agrees to provide and perform the construction set forth in this 

AGREEMENT, or any Amendments hereto, in accordance with generally accepted 

standards of construction practice and in accordance with the laws, statutes, ordinances, 

codes, rules, regulations and policies, of any governmental agencies which may 

regulate, or have jurisdiction over the services to be performed by the DEVELOPER, 

pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 

5. INDEMNIFICATION –  

a. The Developer shall be and agrees to be and remain liable for any and all 

damages, losses, and expenses incurred by the CITY caused by the errors, 

omissions, negligence, or delay(s) of the DEVELOPER or by any 

subcontractors engaged by the DEVELOPER in providing, performing and 

furnishing work and materials pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

b. The DEVELOPER shall be liable and agrees to be liable for and shall 

indemnify, defend and hold the CITY harmless for any and all claims, suits, 

judgments or damages, losses and expenses, including court costs, expert 

witness and professional consultation services, and attorneys’ fees arising out of 

the DEVELOPERS errors, omissions, negligence, or delay(s), or those of any 

subcontractors engaged by the DEVELOPER during the providing, performing 

and furnishing of services, work and materials pursuant to this AGREEMENT 

and any and all Amendments thereto. 

 

6. APPLICABLE LAW/VENUE/JURY TRIAL WAIVED 

This AGREEMENT shall be governed by the ordinances, the laws, rules, and 

regulations of the State of Florida, procedural and substantive and applicable federal 

statutes, rules, and regulations. The venue for any and all litigation, arising under this 

AGREEMENT, shall lie in Clay County, Florida. Each party hereby knowingly waives 

the right to trial by jury of any suits arising hereunder. 

 

7. WAIVER OF BREACH 

Waiver by the CITY of a breach of any provision of this AGREEMENT, by the 

DEVELOPER, shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any other breach and shall not be 

Page 326

Item #12.



Developer Agreement 
("LAND DEDICATION FOR ROADWAY CONSTRUCTION") 
 

 

3 
 

construed to be a modification of the terms of this AGREEMENT. 

 

8. DUTIES AND OBLIGATIONS IMPOSED ON THE DEVELOPER 

The duties and obligations imposed on the DEVELOPER, and the rights and remedies 

available hereunder shall be in addition to, and not a limitation on, any such duties and 

obligations or rights and remedies otherwise imposed or available by law or statute. 

 

9. ATTORNEY FEES 

The prevailing party in any litigation arising hereunder shall be entitled to recover 

reasonable attorney fees and costs from the other party. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto, by their duly authorized officials have 

executed this AGREEMENT on the dates shown below. 

 

DEVELOPER:      CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, 

Clay County Habitat for Humanity, Inc.   FLORIDA 

 

By:________________________________   By:_________________________________ 

Carolyn Edwards, Executive Director   B. Van Royal, Mayor 

 

Its_________________________________            

 

___________________________________             Attest:_______________________________ 

Witness as to DEVELOPER                  Erin West, City Clerk 

 

Date: _________________________________   Approved as to form only: 

 

       ____________________________________

    

L. J. Arnold III, City Attorney 

 

Date:_______________________________ 

 
  

 

 

 

 

 

Page 327

Item #12.



EXHIBIT A

Page 328

Item #12.



Page 329

Item #12.



Page 330

Item #12.



Page 331

Item #12.



 

STAFF REPORT  
CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

TO:  City Council Regular Session MEETING DATE: March 2, 2021 

FROM: L. J. Arnold III, City Attorney 

SUBJECT: City Council approval of Engagement Letter to retain the services of Nabors, Giblin & 

Nickerson, P. A. (“NG&N”) to assist with the annual non-ad valorem assessments for the 

Magnolia West subdivision’s solid waste and City wide stormwater programs. 
 

BACKGROUND 

Due to the increased scrutiny of the use of special assessments by local government to collect user fees 

for certain utilities, the City has for the past several years retained special assessment experts NG&N. 

This area of collections is extremely detailed and legally complicated. Opponents of these type 

assessments have used class action lawsuits requesting refunds from past years assessments if there are 

mistakes in the adoption process. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

 The annual retainer for NG&N is $3,500. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Motion to accept the Engagement Letter with NG&N. 
 

Page 332

Item #13.



TALLAHASSEE 

1500 Mahan Drive 
Suite 200 

Tallahassee, Florida 32308 
(850) 224-4070 Tel 
(850) 224-4073 Fax 

 

TAMPA 

2502 Rocky Point Drive 
Suite 1060 

Tampa, Florida 33607 
(813) 281-2222 Tel 
(813) 281-0129 Fax 

 
PLANTATION 

8201 Peters Road 
Suite 1000 

Plantation, Florida 33324 
(954) 315-0268 Tel 

 
 

February 23, 2021 

Via Electronic Mail 

 

 

L. J. Arnold, III 
City Attorney 
City of Green Cove Springs 
321 Walnut Street 
Green Cove Springs, Florida  32043 
 

Re: Proposal for Annual Non-Ad Valorem Assessment Programs for Solid 
Waste and Stormwater for the Magnolia West Subdivision 

 
Dear Jim: 
 
 This correspondence is written to present a scope of services for Nabors, Giblin 
& Nickerson, P.A. ("NG&N") to provide professional services and specialized assistance 
to the City of Green Cove Springs (the "City") and its staff with the continued 
implementation of annual non-ad valorem assessments for the Magnolia West 
Subdivision's solid waste and stormwater programs. 
 
 Upon receiving notice to proceed, we will work under the detailed critical events 
calendar and schedule for project deliverables that has been tailored to the City's needs 
as provided by City staff. 
 
1) Advise the City as-needed on the legal and procedural issues concerning the 

reimposition of solid waste and stormwater non-ad valorem assessment 
programs, including special benefit, fair apportionment, and procedures. 

 
2) Advise the City on any judicial or legislative actions that may affect or require 

modifications to the City's assessment programs. 
 
3) Draft the preliminary and annual rate resolutions that conform to the assessment, 

already adopted. 

Page 333

Item #13.



L. J. Arnold, III 
February 23, 2021 
Page 2 
 
 
4) Assist with the legal requirements for the adoption of the preliminary and annual 

rate resolutions and certification of the assessment roll in accordance with 
section 197.3632, Florida Statutes, including:  (a) the development of the first 
class notice or TRIM notice, (b) publication of the public hearing, and (c) 
certification of the assessment roll. 

 
For the legal services provided herein, the City will be billed a lump sum fee of 

$3,500.00.  The fees will be due and payable in two equal installments as follows: 

  Payment     Schedule 
 
 ½ of lump sum fee     June 2021 
 ½ of lump sum fee     September 2021 
 

The lump sum fee for professional services for the assessment programs does not 
include any on-site visits to the City by NG&N staff.  Meeting attendance may be 
arranged at our standard hourly rates: 

 
  Partners  $300 
  Associates  $275 
  Law Clerks  $75 
 
Expenses related to meetings will be billed in accordance with Section 112.061, Florida 
Statute. We will bill our actual costs associated with long distance telephone charges 
and overnight delivery services. Copies will be billed at 25¢ per page. The City is 
responsible for any and all newspaper publications, including, but not limited to, making 
arrangements for publications and any costs associated therewith.  
 

NG&N will work with the City in performing its scope of services. 
 

 The professional fees required to assist the City in implementing the 
contemplated assessment programs does not include litigation defense services. 
However, we do all of our work with an eye on potential legal challenges in an attempt 
to maximize both the efficiency and the effectiveness of any defense. In the event there 
is a challenge, we would be available, on an hourly basis, to assist the City in its 
defense. 
 
 Upon review and satisfactory determination, please execute this correspondence 
by signing below to indicate acceptance of the attached proposal and to serve as proper 
Notice to Proceed.  If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me. 
 

Page 334

Item #13.



L. J. Arnold, III 
February 23, 2021 
Page 3 
 
 We look forward to working with the City of Green Cove Springs again.  If you or 
any other City officials have any questions, please feel free to contact me.   
 
      Sincerely, 
 
 
       
      Heather J. Encinosa 
 
HJE/sb 
 
cc: Steve Kennedy 
 
AGREED TO AND ACCEPTED BY: 
 
 
_________________________________  ______________ 
Green Cove Springs, Florida    Date 
 

Page 335

Item #13.



 

STAFF REPORT  
CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

TO:  City Council Regular Session. MEETING DATE: March 2, 2021 

FROM: Steve Thomas 

SUBJECT: City Council approval of a change order #3 to KBT Contracting Corp to Construct a drive 

through shelter for the Food Pantry in the amount of $94,200.00. Steve Thomas 
 

BACKGROUND 

The City Council approved to enter a contract with KBT Contracting to build the library building at 

ASACC facility on 9/15/2020 City Council approved a change order to KBT Contracting to Refurbish 

the Class room area for the Food Pantry for them and now we are adding the covered shelter as part of 

the contract.  

FISCAL IMPACT 

The fiscal impact is 94,200.00 from Account # 001-1214-5006326 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

Approve change order #3 to KBT Contracting Corp to construct a drive through shelter for 

the Food Pantry in the amount of $94,200.00 
 

Page 336

Item #14.



Page 337

Item #14.



Page 338

Item #14.



Page 339

Item #14.



 

STAFF REPORT  
CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

TO:  City Council Regular Session MEETING DATE: March 2, 2021 

FROM: Mike Null, Assistant City Manager 

SUBJECT: City Council adoption of a Language Access Plan (LAP) for Limited English Proficiency 

(LEP) persons. Mike Null 
 

BACKGROUND 

Purpose:  In compliance with Executive Order 13166, the City of Green Cove Springs has developed the following 
Language Access Plan (LAP) for Limited English Proficiency (LEP) persons.     

 

History:  Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 is the federal law that protects individuals from discrimination on 
the basis of their race, color, or national origin in programs that receive federal financial assistance.  In certain 
situations, failure to ensure that persons who have limited English proficiency can effectively participate in, or 
benefit from, federally assisted programs may violate Title VI’s prohibition against national origin discrimination. 

 

Persons who, as a result of national origin, do not speak English as their primary language and who have limited 
ability to speak, read, write, or understand English may be entitled to language assistance under Title VI in order 
to receive a particular service, benefit, or encounter. 

 

City of Green Cove Springs Four-Factor Analysis:  The following Four-Factor Analysis will serve as the guide for 
determining which language assistance measures the City of Green Cove Springs will undertake to guarantee 
access to the City of Green Cove Springs Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) programs by LEP persons.   

 

1. Number or proportion of LEP persons served or encountered in the eligible service population (served or 
encountered includes those persons who would be served by the recipient if the person received education 
and outreach and the recipient provided sufficient language services).   

 

The City of Green Cove Springs utilized American Community Survey data Table(s)#S1602.  Based on this data, 
the City of Green Cove Springs does meet the 1,000 or 5% LEP persons threshold for the Spanish Language.  

 

2. The frequency with which the LEP persons come into contact with the program.  
 

The proposed project does include internet hookups.  Therefore, residents are likely to have considerable 
direct contact with the program and its staff.   
 

3. The nature and importance of the program, activity, or service provided by the program. 
 

The proposed project does provide direct assistance to project area beneficiaries related to internet 
hookups; therefore, the nature of the activity or service is of significant importance to the proposed project 
area(s) residents. 

 
   

Page 340

Item #15.



4. The resources available and costs to the recipient. 
 

Currently, there are free websites that can be utilized to translate some written materials.  Additionally, 
local volunteers have been identified to provide oral translation services at public meetings and during 
conversations with LEP residents during the implementation of the proposed project.  Furthermore, many 
of the common forms used in the implementation of a CDBG project are available in multiple languages on 
the HUD and DOL websites.  Additionally, translation activities are an eligible CDBG administrative expense.  
Therefore, limited LAP measures are reasonable given the resources available to the City of Green Cove 
Springs. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT 

None 

RECOMMENDATION 

Approve adoption of the Language Access Plan as attached. 
 

Page 341

Item #15.



 1 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

FOUR-FACTOR ANALYSIS 
and 

LANGUAGE ACCESS PLAN 
FOR LIMITED ENGLISH PROFICIENCY 

PERSONS 

 
 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
BLOCK GRANT PROGRAM 

 
 
 

CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 342

Item #15.



 2 

Purpose:  In compliance with Executive Order 13166, the City of Green Cove 
Springs has developed the following Language Access Plan (LAP) for Limited 
English Proficiency (LEP) persons.     

 

History:  Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 is the federal law that protects 
individuals from discrimination on the basis of their race, color, or national origin in 
programs that receive federal financial assistance.  In certain situations, failure to 
ensure that persons who have limited English proficiency can effectively participate 
in, or benefit from, federally assisted programs may violate Title VI’s prohibition 
against national origin discrimination. 

 

Persons who, as a result of national origin, do not speak English as their primary 
language and who have limited ability to speak, read, write, or understand English 
may be entitled to language assistance under Title VI in order to receive a 
particular service, benefit, or encounter. 

 

City of Green Cove Springs Four-Factor Analysis:  The following Four-Factor 
Analysis will serve as the guide for determining which language assistance 
measures the City of Green Cove Springs will undertake to guarantee access to 
the City of Green Cove Springs Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 
programs by LEP persons.   

 

1. Number or proportion of LEP persons served or encountered in the eligible 
service population (served or encountered includes those persons who would 
be served by the recipient if the person received education and outreach and 
the recipient provided sufficient language services).   

 

The City of Green Cove Springs utilized American Community Survey data 
Table(s)#S1602.  Based on this data, the City of Green Cove Springs does 
meet the 1,000 or 5% LEP persons threshold for the Spanish Language.  

 

2. The frequency with which the LEP persons come into contact with the program.  
 

The proposed project does include internet hookups.  Therefore, residents 
are likely to have considerable direct contact with the program and its staff.   
 

3. The nature and importance of the program, activity, or service provided by the 
program. 

 

The proposed project does provide direct assistance to project area 
beneficiaries related to internet hookups; therefore, the nature of the activity 
or service is of significant importance to the proposed project area(s) 
residents. 

 
   

4. The resources available and costs to the recipient. 
 

Page 343

Item #15.



 3 

Currently, there are free websites that can be utilized to translate some 
written materials.  Additionally, local volunteers have been identified to 
provide oral translation services at public meetings and during conversations 
with LEP residents during the implementation of the proposed project.  
Furthermore, many of the common forms used in the implementation of a 
CDBG project are available in multiple languages on the HUD and DOL 
websites.  Additionally, translation activities are an eligible CDBG 
administrative expense.  Therefore, limited LAP measures are reasonable 
given the resources available to the City of Green Cove Springs. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Page 344

Item #15.



 4 

City of Green Cove Springs 
Language Access Plan 

 
As a result of the preceding Four-Factor Analysis, the City of Green Cove Springs 
has identified the following types of language assistance to be provided on an as 
needed basis by the City of Green Cove Springs throughout the implementation of 
the CDBG program:   

 
▪ All CDBG citizen participation documents, project-related resolutions, public 

notices, and amendments will be published in Spanish on bulletin boards at 
the City Hall and in public places throughout the proposed project area(s) 
and/or the community.   

 
▪ Additionally, all published citizen participation advertisements will include a 

statement in Spanish indicating other program materials are available in 
Spanish upon request.  
 

▪ All citizen participation notices will include a statement that translators will be 
available at public meetings upon prior request. 
 

▪ If needed, a translator may be retained to provide oral translation in the field 
during the implementation of the project activities.   

 
▪ If other populations of LEP persons are identified in the future, The City of 

Green Cove Springs will consider additional measures to serve the language 
access needs of those persons.     

 
 
Adopted:       
 
            
       Date Adopted 
 
 
 
 
             
Attest       Mayor      

Page 345

Item #15.



2/15/2021 https://data.census.gov/cedsci/table?q=Limited English Speaking Households Green Cove Springs, Florida &tid=ACSST5Y2019.S1602&hidePreview=false

https://data.census.gov/cedsci/table?q=Limited English Speaking Households Green Cove Springs, Florida &tid=ACSST5Y2019.S1602&hidePreview=false 1/3

LIMITED ENGLISH SPEAKING HOUSEHOLDS

Note: This is a modi�ed view of the original table produced by the U.S. Census Bureau. This download or printed version may have
missing information from the original table.

Label

Green Cove Springs city, Florida

Total Percent

Estimate Margin of Error Estimate M

 All households

 Households speaking --

Spanish

Other Indo-European languages

Asian and Paci�c Island languages

Other languages

2,803 ±197 (X)

308 ±137 11.0%

53 ±39 1.9%

25 ±26 0.9%

70 ±73 2.5%

Page 346

Item #15.



2/15/2021 https://data.census.gov/cedsci/table?q=Limited English Speaking Households Green Cove Springs, Florida &tid=ACSST5Y2019.S1602&hidePreview=false

https://data.census.gov/cedsci/table?q=Limited English Speaking Households Green Cove Springs, Florida &tid=ACSST5Y2019.S1602&hidePreview=false 2/3

Table Notes

LIMITED ENGLISH SPEAKING HOUSEHOLDS
Survey/Program:
American Community Survey
Year:
2019
Estimates:
5-Year
Table ID:
S1602

Although the American Community Survey (ACS) produces population, demographic and housing unit estimates, it is the Census Bureau's Population
Estimates Program that produces and disseminates the o�cial estimates of the population for the nation, states, counties, cities, and towns and estimates of
housing units for states and counties. 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2015-2019 American Community Survey 5-Year Estimates 

Data are based on a sample and are subject to sampling variability. The degree of uncertainty for an estimate arising from sampling variability is represented
through the use of a margin of error. The value shown here is the 90 percent margin of error. The margin of error can be interpreted roughly as providing a 90
percent probability that the interval de�ned by the estimate minus the margin of error and the estimate plus the margin of error (the lower and upper
con�dence bounds) contains the true value. In addition to sampling variability, the ACS estimates are subject to nonsampling error (for a discussion of
nonsampling variability, see ACS Technical Documentation). The effect of nonsampling error is not represented in these tables. 

A "limited English speaking household" is one in which no member 14 years old and over (1) speaks only English or (2) speaks a non-English language and
speaks English "very well." In other words, all members 14 years old and over have at least some di�culty with English. By de�nition, English-only households
cannot belong to this group. Previous Census Bureau data products have referred to these households as "linguistically isolated" and "Households in which no
one 14 and over speaks English only or speaks a language other than English at home and speaks English 'very well'." This table is directly comparable to
tables from earlier years that used these labels. 

The household language assigned to the housing unit is the non-English language spoken by the �rst person with a non-English language in the following
order: reference person, spouse, parent, sibling, child, grandchild, in-law, other relative, unmarried partner, housemate/roommate, roomer/boarder, foster child,
or other nonrelative. If no member of the household age 5 and over speaks a language other than English at home then the household language is English
only. 

The 2015-2019 American Community Survey (ACS) data generally re�ect the September 2018 O�ce of Management and Budget (OMB) delineations of
metropolitan and micropolitan statistical areas. In certain instances, the names, codes, and boundaries of the principal cities shown in ACS tables may differ
from the OMB delineation lists due to differences in the effective dates of the geographic entities. 

Page 347

Item #15.



2/15/2021 https://data.census.gov/cedsci/table?q=Limited English Speaking Households Green Cove Springs, Florida &tid=ACSST5Y2019.S1602&hidePreview=false

https://data.census.gov/cedsci/table?q=Limited English Speaking Households Green Cove Springs, Florida &tid=ACSST5Y2019.S1602&hidePreview=false 3/3

Estimates of urban and rural populations, housing units, and characteristics re�ect boundaries of urban areas de�ned based on Census 2010 data. As a result,
data for urban and rural areas from the ACS do not necessarily re�ect the results of ongoing urbanization. 

Explanation of Symbols:

An "**" entry in the margin of error column indicates that either no sample observations or too few sample observations were available to compute a
standard error and thus the margin of error. A statistical test is not appropriate.
An "-" entry in the estimate column indicates that either no sample observations or too few sample observations were available to compute an estimate,
or a ratio of medians cannot be calculated because one or both of the median estimates falls in the lowest interval or upper interval of an open-ended
distribution, or the margin of error associated with a median was larger than the median itself.
An "-" following a median estimate means the median falls in the lowest interval of an open-ended distribution.
An "+" following a median estimate means the median falls in the upper interval of an open-ended distribution.
An "***" entry in the margin of error column indicates that the median falls in the lowest interval or upper interval of an open-ended distribution. A
statistical test is not appropriate.
An "*****" entry in the margin of error column indicates that the estimate is controlled. A statistical test for sampling variability is not appropriate.
An "N" entry in the estimate and margin of error columns indicates that data for this geographic area cannot be displayed because the number of
sample cases is too small.
An "(X)" means that the estimate is not applicable or not available.

Supporting documentation on code lists, subject de�nitions, data accuracy, and statistical testing can be found on the American Community Survey website in
the Technical Documentation section. 

Sample size and data quality measures (including coverage rates, allocation rates, and response rates) can be found on the American Community Survey
website in the Methodology section. 

Page 348

Item #15.



 

STAFF REPORT  
CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

TO:  City Council Regular Session MEETING DATE: March 2, 2021 

FROM: Mike Null, Assistant City Manager 

SUBJECT: First Public Hearing to take recommendations for a CDBG-CV Coronavirus Cycle grant 

application with the Florida Department of Economic Opportunity. 
 

BACKGROUND 

The City of Green Cove Springs is considering submitting an application to the Florida Department of 

Economic Opportunity (DEO) for a Small Cities Community Development Block Grant in the 

Coronavirus (CDBG-CV) Application cycle. A total of $41,931,595.00 is being made available through 

a competitive application process to local governments who are eligible to participate in the Small Cities 

Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program within the State of Florida. The minimum 

amount a community may apply for is two hundred thousand dollars ($200,000.00), the maximum 

amount a community may apply for is five million dollars ($5,000,000.00). The City may submit only 

one application for a single project or program. 

 

These funds must be used for projects that meet the following threshold criteria: 

 

1. Project activities must meet at least one of the following National Objectives: 

 Benefit to Low-and-Moderate Income Persons (LMI) individuals and/or households, including: 

▪ Indirect benefit activities – at least 51% of beneficiaries must be LMI; or 

▪ Direct benefit activities – 100% of beneficiaries must be LMI. 

 Prevention or elimination of slum and blight – see 24 CFR §570.483(c); or 

 Address an Urgent Need – see 24 CFR 570.483(d). 

 

2. Project activities must prevent, prepare for, or respond to the coronavirus, and should demonstrate a: 

 Direct effect: Costs directly associated with coronavirus prevention, preparation, or response, 

(e.g. rehabilitation of building to create additional quarantine and isolation rooms for recovering 

COVID-19 patients). 

 Indirect effect: Economic and housing market disruptions (e.g. small business assistance). 

 

Examples of some of the activities which can be applied for include but are not limited to the following: 

 

• Rehabilitate a facility for testing, diagnosis or treatment of Covid-19. 

• Acquire and rehabilitate, or construct, a group living facility that may be used to centralize patients 

undergoing treatment. 

• Installation of wiring, fiber optic cables, and permanently affixed equipment such as receivers for areas 

to receive broadband/internet access. 

• Rehabilitate a senior center, community center or homeless shelter by replacing the HVAC system 

Page 349

Item #16.



and/or installing air purification system. 

• Acquisition and/or rehabilitation of a building to expand capacity of homeless shelters to accommodate 

social distancing and isolation. 

• Installation of wi-fi routers/extenders in affordable housing buildings for LMI residents. 

• Provide testing, diagnosis or other services at a fixed or mobile location. 

• Provide equipment, supplies, and materials necessary to carry-out a public service (e.g., childcare for 

working parents with distance learning school kids). 

• Deliver meals on wheels to quarantined individuals or individuals that need to maintain social 

distancing due to medical vulnerabilities. 

 

The range of activities that may be undertaken will be provided at the public hearing. In developing an 

application for submission to DEO, the City must plan to minimize displacement of persons as a result 

of planned CDBG-CV activities. In addition, the City is required to develop a plan to assist displaced 

persons. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

TBD 

RECOMMENDATION 

Subject to Council Direction 

 

Page 350

Item #16.



CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS NOTICE OF FIRST PUBLIC HEARING

EL AVISO DE PRIMERA AUDIENCIA PÚBLICA ESTÁ DISPONIBLE EN ESPAÑOL EN EL SITIO WEB DE LA CIUDAD DE GREEN COVE SPRINGS 
(www.cityofgreencovesprings.com)

The City of Green Cove Springs is considering submitting an application to the Florida Department of Economic Opportunity (DEO) for a Small Cities Community Development Block Grant in the 
Coronavirus (CDBG-CV) Application cycle. A total of $41,931,595.00 is being made available through a competitive application process to local governments who are eligible to participate in the 
Small Cities Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program within the State of Florida. The minimum amount a community may apply for is two hundred thousand dollars ($200,000.00), 
the maximum amount a community may apply for is five million dollars ($5,000,000.00). The City may submit only one application for a single project or program.

These funds must be used for projects that meet the following threshold criteria:
 1. Project activities must meet at least one of the following National Objectives:
 l Benefit to Low-and-Moderate Income Persons (LMI) individuals and/or households, including:
 l Indirect benefit activities – at least 51% of beneficiaries must be LMI; or
 l Direct benefit activities – 100% of beneficiaries must be LMI.
 l Prevention or elimination of slum and blight – see 24 CFR §570.483(c); or
 l Address an Urgent Need – see 24 CFR 570.483(d).
 2. Project activities must prevent, prepare for, or respond to the coronavirus, and should demonstrate a:
 l      Direct effect: Costs directly associated with coronavirus prevention, preparation, or response, (e.g. rehabilitation of building to create additional 
       quarantine and isolation rooms for recovering COVID-19 patients).
 l       Indirect effect: Economic and housing market disruptions (e.g. small business assistance).
Examples of some of the activities which can be applied for include but are not limited to the following:
 l     Rehabilitate a facility for testing, diagnosis or treatment of Covid-19.
 l      Acquire and rehabilitate, or construct, a group living facility that may be used to centralize patients undergoing treatment.
 l      Installation of wiring, fiber optic cables, and permanently affixed equipment such as receivers for areas to receive broadband/internet access.
 l      Rehabilitate a senior center, community center or homeless shelter by replacing the HVAC system and/or installing air purification system.
 l      Acquisition and/or rehabilitation of a building to expand capacity of homeless shelters to accommodate social distancing and isolation.
 l      Installation of wi-fi routers/extenders in affordable housing buildings for LMI residents.
 l      Provide testing, diagnosis or other services at a fixed or mobile location.
 l      Provide equipment, supplies, and materials necessary to carry-out a public service (e.g., childcare for working parents with distance learning school kids).
 l      Deliver meals on wheels to quarantined individuals or individuals that need to maintain social distancing due to medical vulnerabilities.

The range of activities that may be undertaken will be provided at the public hearing. In developing an application for submission to DEO, the City must plan to minimize displacement of persons as 
a result of planned CDBG-CV activities. In addition, the City is required to develop a plan to assist displaced persons.

The public hearing to receive citizen views concerning the community’s housing, economic and other community development needs related to the coronavirus will be held on Tuesday, March 
2, 2021, at 7:00 PM or as soon as possible thereafter during a regular City Commission meeting to be held at the City of Green Cove Springs City Hall, City Council Meeting held at the 
City Council Meeting Room, 321 Walnut Street, Green Cove Springs, FL, 32043-3441. If you have questions concerning the CDBG-CV application process or the list of eligible activities, 
please contact Ms. Erin West, City Clerk at (904)297-7500, ext. 3307, or via email to ewest@greencovesprings.com.

The meeting is being held in a handicapped accessible facility. Non-English speaking, deaf, or visually impaired persons needing an interpreter or any handicapped person requiring special 
accommodation should contact Ms. Erin West, City Clerk, at (904) 297-7500, ext. 3307 at least 48 hours prior to the meeting.

A Fair Housing/Equal Opportunity/Handicap Accessible Jurisdiction.

City of Green Cove Springs
Erin West, City Clerk 
321 Walnut Street
Green Cove Springs, FL  32043

L. Steve Kennedy, City Manager
                                                                                                                                              Legal 47425 published Feb 25, 2021 in Clay County’s Clay Today newspaper

Page 351

Item #16.



FMPA Monthly Report 

 

March 2021 
 

Rate Call 
 

The average price of natural gas for the month was $2.39. Daily natural gas prices have fluctuated in the 

$2.60 - 3.00 range with a spike to $3.30 during the Texas cold spell. The forward pricing curve is 

approximately 2% above the FY21 budgeted natural gas price. 

 

The peak for the month occurred on 19 January at 8AM. 

 

Natural gas accounted for 62% of the generation mix. Coal was 22% and nuclear was 6%. Solar 

generation was 1%. Coal generation was higher than budget due to burning off Lakeland coal reserves 

and water control at Stanton. 

 

The Vero Beach cost recovery account stands at $5.9 million. This is $6.0 million below the planned 

target. 

 

Board of directors 
 

The Board of Directors did not have any action items on the agenda. 

 

Information items included an Annual Debt report, mobile substation update and Inter-regional Price-

Consumption-Emissions differences and the policy implications. 

 

Executive Committee 
 

The Executive Committee approved a bond Resolution for R&R funding and a Line of Credit. 

 

Information items were an Annual Debt report, margin from external sales, alternate staffing plan for 

Treasure Coast Energy Center and Cane Island 3 planned outage update. 

 

Strategic Planning Session 
 

The goals identified for FMPA were: 

• Lower controllable wholesale power costs for all power supply projects 

• Optimize the performance of Stanton I & II 

• Evaluate FMPA’s human resource requirements to maintain responsive member services or expand 

resources to meet new service initiatives, 

• Develop alternates to current transmission rate growth 

• Evaluate additional solar/storage resources to support customer desires and/or meet additional emission 

targets 

 

The goals for the Executive Committee (the All Requirements Project, ARP): 

• With Florida Municipal Power Pool partners, consider operational improvements to reduce costs and 

increase reliability with expansion of intermittent resources as well as consider structural changes that 

create value for all and may enhance Pool expansion 

• Identify affordable energy storage opportunities 

Page 352

Item #17.



• Create low- or no-cost demand-side management programs to meet peak and defer capacity additions 

Page 353

Item #17.



Board of Directors

9c - Inter-regional Price, Consumption and 
Emissions Difference and Policy Implications

February 18, 2021

Page 49 of 62 Page 354

Item #17.



Significant Inter-regional Differences Prices & Emissions

• Significant inter-regional diversity of electric emissions, prices and consumption in U.S.

▪ Southeast and Greater TX have low electric prices, high per capita of consumption of
electricity, moderate CO2 emissions

▪ CA and New England have very high costs, low consumption and CO2 emissions

▪ East Central and Midwest have moderate prices, consumption, relatively high CO2

emissions

▪ Pacific NW with its hydro abundance has low prices and CO2 emissions

▪ Eastern U.S. renewable options generally limited to solar

• CO2 policy implications – need for regional vs national standards

• Need for balancing “Environmental” vs “Economic” justice

• Looking for feedback on policy positions
2

CO2 Policy Implications – Regionalization, Balance Cost Impacts

Page 50 of 62 Page 355

Item #17.



U.S. Regional Electric Generation Emissions (lbs./MWh)

3

Emissions Driven in Part by Access to Natural Resources

> 1,400 lbs./MWh

1,000 – 1,400 
lbs./MWh

600 – 1,000 
lbs./MWh

< 600 lbs./MWH

Pacific Northwest 
454

Greater TX
982

Rockies
1,625

Southeast
801

Southwest 901

Midwest
1,070

East Central
1,153CA

447

1,260

Hawaii 1,659

Northeast
510

Page 51 of 62 Page 356

Item #17.



U.S. Average Residential Retail Price (cents/kWh)

4

Higher Consumption Regions Have Lower Prices

> 18 cents

12-13 cents

< 12 cents

Pacific Northwest 
10.20

Greater TX
11.17

Rockies
11.55

Southeast
11.73

Southwest
12.34

Midwest
12.46

East Central
12.90

Northeast
18.29

CA
19.15

22.92

Hawaii 32.06 Page 52 of 62 Page 357

Item #17.



U.S. Residential Customer Consumption (kWh/Cust.)

5

Usage Driven by Space Conditioning

> 12,000 
kWh/Customer

8,000 – 12,000 
kWh/Customer

< 8,000 
kWh/Customer

Hawaii 6,296

Alaska
6,665

Northeast
7,374

Rockies
8,506

Midwest 
9,873

Pacific Northwest 
11,314

East Central
10,832

Southwest 10,995

Southeast
13,555

Greater TX
13,766

CA
6,385

Page 53 of 62 Page 358

Item #17.



Regional Average Residential Electric Bill ($/Month)

6

Highest Usage Regions Have Highest Bills

Pacific Northwest 
$96

Greater TX
$128

Rockies
$81

Southeast
$132

Southwest
$113

Midwest
$102

East Central
$116CA

$101

$127

Hawaii $168

Northeast
$112

> $120

$110 - $120

$100 - $110

< $100

Page 54 of 62 Page 359

Item #17.



7

10% of disposable income 
goes to the electric bill

SOURCE: American Coalition for 
Clean Coal Electricity, “Energy 
Cost Impacts on Florida 
Families,” Gene Trisko, 2016

FOR

1 OF 3
FLORIDIANS

Page 55 of 62 Page 360

Item #17.



Increasing CO2 Reductions in FL Comes at a Cost

50% 
CO2 Reductions

Inflationary
cost increases 

expected through 
2027 while 

achieving 50% CO2

reduction from 
2005 levels

70% 
CO2 Reductions

20% 
cost increases 
over inflation

using gas 
generation for 
reliability and 
peaking, solar 

power increases, 
some batteries

95% 
CO2 Reductions

50 - 100%
cost increases 
over inflation

with significant 
solar power plus 
battery backup 
with natural gas 
only available for 
emergency use

100% 
CO2 Reductions

200 - 300%
cost increases

with significant 
amounts of new 

solar plus dramatic 
increase in battery 
capacity to provide 
days of reserves for 

cloudy periods

8

Power Costs Increases Could Range from Inflationary to 300%

Page 56 of 62 Page 361

Item #17.



Federal CO2 Policy Needs Regional Considerations 

• Federal CO2 policy needs regional considerations

▪ CO2 emission targets should be regionalized – vastly different starting points and CO2 free 
resources available to reduce emissions

▪ Cost of emission reductions should be balanced regionally - no region’s customers bearing 
large share

▪ Policy should have “price circuit-breakers” if consumer costs rise too fast in given region

• Pace of CO2 emissions reductions in U.S. should be balanced against economic impact on fixed 
and low income consumers

▪ Balance “Environmental” vs “Economic” justice

• Pace of CO2 emission reductions should account for present technological solutions cost 
effectiveness

• Other thoughts?

9

Should Balance “Environmental” and “Economic” Justice

Page 57 of 62 Page 362

Item #17.



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM 9 – INFORMATION 
ITEMS 
 
d. Summary of Finance Committee 

Items  
 

Board of Directors Meeting 
February 18, 2021 
 
 
 
 

Page 58 of 62 Page 363

Item #17.



Board of Directors

9d – Summary of Finance Committee Items

February 18, 2021

Page 59 of 62 Page 364

Item #17.



Other Items

• Approval of Risk Policies

• Review of the Agency Annual Risk Inventory

2

March Review/Approval

Page 60 of 62 Page 365

Item #17.



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM 10 – MEMBER 
COMMENTS 
 
 
Board of Directors Meeting 
February 18, 2021 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 61 of 62 Page 366

Item #17.



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM 11 – ADJOURNMENT   
 
 
Board of Directors Meeting 
February 18, 2021 
 

Page 62 of 62 Page 367

Item #17.



Board of Directors and 
Executive Committee

FMPA Strategic Planning Session 
Ten-Year Plan

February 17, 2021
Page 368

Item #17.



Session Outline

2

What We’ve Achieved and What’s on Horizon

1. Review of Vision, Mission and Values
2. Review of February 2019 Strategic Priorities
3. Review Strategic Planning Material and Identify Potential Priorities

A. Drivers of FMPA and Member Businesses
B. FMPA Talent Management
C. Ten-Year Resource Plan
D. Environmental Responsibility
E. Asset and Capital Plan and Rate Projections
F. FMPA Risks and Opportunities
G. Review Overall Electric and Natural Gas Market Outlook (Background Information)

4. Lunch
5. Review and Categorize Identified Potential Strategic Priorities
6. Develop Consensus on Top Strategic Priorities for Next 2 Years

Page 369

Item #17.



Review of Vision, Mission and Values

3
Page 370

Item #17.



FMPA Vision and Mission

4

VISION
• To sustainably be the lowest cost, reliable and clean wholesale power 

provider in Florida.

MISSION
• To provide low-cost, reliable and clean power plus value-added 

services for FMPA’s owner-customers that benefit their communities 
and customers.

Page 371

Item #17.



FMPA Values

5

• A culture that values both our employees and operating agents and their safety

• Teamwork among our employees and our public power member-owner-customers

• Trust built through honesty, integrity, transparency, open communications and respect

• Employee development, recognition, reward and empowerment

• Environmentally responsible operations

• Member and employee diversity and inclusion

• Innovation and excellence

• The individual needs and desires of FMPA’s owner-customers shall be given the strongest 
consideration consistent with the best interests of all owner-customers

Page 372

Item #17.



Review of February 2019 Strategic Priorities

6
Page 373

Item #17.



We’ve Made Good Progress Since 2019

Rank Strategic Priority Steps Taken

1 Drive Down Wholesale Power Costs • Power costs lowest since 2004, down 37% vs. 2009
• Low-cost units continue at 90+% availability
• Implementing ongoing debt restructuring strategies
• ~$5.7M net benefit of external sales ($1.00/MWh) 

for Fiscal Year 2020

2 Reliability Enhancements • APPA DEED Trip Saver Pilot & 16 Member Projects
• 16 cities improved outage duration since 2018
• 12 cities < 60-minute avg. duration in 2019

3 Cost of Service and Solar Subscriptions • 6 Members have or pursuing solar subscriptions
• 15 Financial Planning Projects for Members
• Pull Savings Forward COVID support for 22 

4 Expand Member Services Projects • 27 significant member projects in fiscal 2019
• 29 significant member projects in fiscal 2020

7

Good Success, and More Work to Do

Page 374

Item #17.



We’ve Made Good Progress Since 2019

Rank Strategic Priority Steps Taken

5 Expand services in NERC 
compliance/cyber/IT

• Assisted 11 Members in cyber security scorecard
• Phishing Testing for 5 members
• Working with 4 members on more holistic IT Assessments 

with 1st billable IT support project
• 2 FMPA-led peer reviews (FPUA & Ocala) in 2020

6 Transmission Rate 
Mitigation/Connect with New Power 
Supply Resources

• Coordinating 2 new looped connections for Members
• External sales and pool management efforts
• Explored transmission build alternatives with FPL, no viable 

projects
• Negotiated multi-year rate with FPL, awaiting FERC approval
• Negotiated lump sum adjustment with DEF

7 Expand services in AMI 
Implementation

• Advanced 2 Member AMI Procurements to Phase 2
• AMI Workshop and surveys to ID new service options
• Grid Modernization/road-mapping in PM role

8

Success, More Work to Do on Strategic Items

Page 375

Item #17.



Drivers of FMPA and Member Businesses
How Are We Doing?

9
Page 376

Item #17.



Overview: Muni Challenges Increasing

• Working to lower cost on retail front while…

• Continuing to improve reliability of power system and managing staffing retention 
challenges (e.g. linemen)

• Increasing new workload (e.g., IT, compliance, new technology, communications)

• Responding to increased customer expectations (service options, rate structures, 
day-to-day communications, and new technologies like EVs)

• Continued improvement in emissions reductions while keeping prices affordable

• Goal of increasing the member electric utilities’ value to each of their 
communities and proactively communicating business model benefits

10

More to Achieve with Limited Resources

Page 377

Item #17.



FMPA’s Mission Important for Floridians

11

Lower Wages, Less Disposable Income, Higher Consumption

LOW-COST POWER
Customers Need It

RELIABLE POWER
Customers Expect It

CLEAN POWER
Customers Want It

Page 378

Item #17.



FMPA’s Stretch Goals for the Coming Years

12

Our Targets for Low-Cost, Reliable and Clean Wholesale Power

Keep power costs below $70 per 
megawatt hour

70

Reduce average outage duration for 
Florida’s municipals to 60 minutes 

60

Reduce carbon emissions 50% from 
2005 levels by 2027

50
Page 379

Item #17.



FMPA’s Power Costs Lowest Since 2004

13

First Time Below $70 Per MWh in 16 Years

$104.80

$94.60

$83.20
$79.40

$85.90
$81.80

$72.80 $71.90
$77.10

$71.68 $71.22
$66.83

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

• Costs down 36% 
since 2009

• Prices nationally 
up 13%

All-Requirements Project Power Costs
Average cost per 1,000 kWh billed by fiscal year

Page 380

Item #17.



ARP Rates Competitive With Other JAAs

14

Most Recent Rate in Lower Quarter of Benchmarks

$87 

$79 
$74 $74 $74 $73 $72 $71 $70 $69 $67 

$61 $61 $60 

SC IL MI NC NC SC IN WI GA AL MO OK

Annual Average Power Supply Costs by JAA (2019*)
Average cost per 1,000 kWh billed. Source: PFM Financial, FMPA

*WPPI serves portions of MI, IA. AMEA data reflects 2020. MEAG reflects bulk power cost to Participants from MEAG’s Annual Report.

ARP
‘19

ARP
’20

Resource mix and access 
to different types of 
generation varies among 
benchmarks.PMPA

IMEA
MMPA Agency 1 NCEMPA Santee IMPA

WPPI MEAG

AMEA MJMEUC OMPA

Page 381

Item #17.



Florida’s Residential Electric Cost 16th Lowest in U.S.

15

Florida's High Electric Use Depends on Low-Cost Power

> 15 cents

12-15 cents

< 12 cents

MA  21.1¢
CT 22.8¢
NH 19.1¢
RI 21.8¢
NJ 16.1¢
VT 19.4¢
MD  13.0¢
DE 12.5¢
DC 12.5¢

SOURCE: U.S. Energy Information Administration, 2020 year-to-date average

32.1¢ 11.5¢

Page 382

Item #17.



Retail Rates Competitive, Could Improve

16

There’s More We Can Do … We’re Not Satisfied

*FMPA All-Requirements Project (ARP) and Muni rates weighted by 2013 & 2019 annual load.

$144.33
2013 $138.05

2013

$120.84
2013

$130.26
2013

$144.19
2013

134.43
2020 $129.91

2020

$119.85
2020 $117.44

2020

$160.63
2020

$100

$115

$130

$145

$160

ARP Weighted
Average*

Muni Weighted
Average*

FP&L TECO Duke Florida

Residential Bill Comparison
Cost per 1,200 kWh, Calendar Year 2013 vs 2020 Average Rate

• IOU Weighted Average Rate up 2.3%
• Muni Weighted Average Rate down 5.9%

Page 383

Item #17.



Rates Truly Matter to Community Stakeholders

17

“We’re talking about options to 
explore and grow JEA to protect it 
from what would be a slow, but 
certain, death spiral.”

“Our city-owned electric utility charges significantly 
more for power than our local competitor, FPL. But 
my colleagues won’t explore selling it. Our electric 
utility is essentially a mechanism to levy a 
regressive tax on our resident."

Rep. Omari Hardy, Florida District 88, 
Former Lake Worth Beach City 
Commissioner

Alan Howard, Former JEA Board Member

“We get complaints from the 
ordinary citizen and 

businesses that they’re being 
overcharged quite a bit.” 

“We could duplicate what 
Vero Beach did.”

Reggie Sessions, District 1 City Commissioner, Fort Pierce
Page 384

Item #17.



Municipals Low-Cost Provider in Each Category

18

No ARP Cities Lowest Cost Provider

SOURCE: FMEA Retail Bill Comparison Data through December 2020.

Rate Class 2020 YTD* Utility
1,000 KWH LAKELAND
1,200 KWH LAKELAND
2,500 KWH LAKELAND
Non-Demand 750 KWH TALLAHASSEE
Non-Demand 1,500 KWH TALLAHASSEE
30 KW - 6,000 KWH LAKELAND
40 KW-10,000 KWH LAKELAND
75 KW - 15,000 KWH MOUNT DORA
75 KW - 30,000 KWH MOUNT DORA
150 KW - 30,000 KWH MOUNT DORA
150 KW - 60,000 KWH MOUNT DORA
300 KW - 60,000 KWH MOUNT DORA
300 KW - 120,000 KWH MOUNT DORA
500 KW - 100,000 KWH MOUNT DORA
500 KW - 200,000 KWH MOUNT DORA

Page 385

Item #17.



FMPA Working to Continue Lowering Power Costs

• FMPA’s costs have decreased significantly

• Some municipals have very competitive rates

• On average, municipals are lower than IOU 
average, but most municipals not as low as the 
lowest IOUs

• There is more that could be done to have all 
municipals rate competitive, is this a focus area?

• Besides lowering wholesale power costs, is there 
anything FMPA can do to drive competitive costs?

19

What Else Can FMPA Do to Drive Competitive Costs?

70
Keep power costs 

below $70 per 
megawatt hour

70
Page 386

Item #17.



Reliability Goal

20
Page 387

Item #17.



Reliability Goal: Average Outage Duration 60 Minutes

• Customers expect reliable power

• Competition setting a new standard

• Municipals typically excel at restoring 
power quickly (CAIDI)

• Some municipals perform excellent in 
reliability indices but performance on 
some indices varies widely

• Municipals could benefit from 
reliability best practices to enhance 
customer satisfaction

Munis FPL Gulf

Duration
(SAIDI)

70 49 67

Restoration
(CAIDI)

60 60 69

Frequency
(SAIFI)

1.16 0.82 0.97

Momentaries
(MAIFIe)

3.32 3.20 2.13

21

Average Muni Reliability Good, But Some IOUs Making Strides

Distribution Reliability Indices for 2019
Best Performer in Florida Highlighted in Green

Page 388

Item #17.



Municipal Reliability Performance Varies Widely

22

Significant Effort Needed to Meet the Goal

Average Outage Duration (SAIDI) for Municipals That Provide Data to FMPA
In minutes for fiscal 2020

0

50

100

150

200

250

Municipals Less Than 6,000 Meters Greater Than 50,000 MetersBetween 12,000-36,000 Meters

Goal

Page 389

Item #17.



FMPA Offers Assistance with Reliability Initiatives

Projects Members

Substation Improvements Starke, Clewiston, Green Cove Springs, Gainesville, Wauchula

Protection Coordination Blountstown, New Smyrna Beach, Williston

Customized Training Bartow, Key West, Homestead, Williston, Alachua

Lateral Reclosers Bartow, Homestead; Additionally, through the DEED Project, 
Tallahassee, Havana, Key West

Mobile Substation Project Multiple potential members

Mapping, GIS Blountstown, Bushnell, Chattahoochee, Fort Meade, Green Cove 
Springs, Havana, Moore Haven, Williston

AMI Clewiston, Newberry

23

Recent Examples of FMPA’s Growing Support to Members

Page 390

Item #17.



FMPA Can Provide Reliability Resources in Key Areas

Best Practices Available FMPA Support

Circuit Inspection SME support, contract services for infrared inspection

Substation Maintenance SME support, contract services available

Tree Trimming SME support, contract services available

Fuse Coordination SME support, Master Services Agreements

Pole Inspection & Replacement Contract services

Targeted Hardening Master Services Agreements, SME support

Lateral Reclosers SME support, Master Services Agreements

SCADA, GIS, AMI Master Services Agreements, limited SME support 

24

Leveraging Subject-Matter Experts, Joint Purchase Contracts

SME refers to subject-matter experts available on FMPA’s staff. List of contract services available from FMPA’s joint procurement efforts. 
Page 391

Item #17.

https://portal.fmpa.com/category/member-services/joint-purchase-project-bid-awards/


As Costs Come Down, Will Reliability Be a Focus Area

• FMPA works to supply reliable wholesale power, 
and retail-level reliability important, too

• Some municipals challenged for various reasons 
to apply best practices

• If members seek assistance to the level of the 
opportunity, additional FMPA resources could be 
necessary to support reliability efforts

• Is reliability a top strategic issue for members?

• Do members see a joint-action advantage for 
FMPA to expand reliability services?

25

Is There a Joint-Action Advantage to Expand Reliability Services

60
Reduce average   

outage duration for 
Florida’s municipals to 

60 minutes

60
Page 392

Item #17.



Additional Retail and Member Service 
Opportunities

26
Page 393

Item #17.



Member Service Projects Increasing in Number

• Report to Board highlighted distribution assistance to 
members, noting 7 projects for 5 citiesJuly 2018

• Logged 27 member projects in fiscal 2019 Management 
GoalsFY 2019

• Management Goals logged 29 new member projects, 11 
Cyber Scorecards, 5 SAIDI reductions, 6 solar subscriptionsFY 2020

• Adopted guidelines for chargeable services and have been 
engaged on 2 chargeable services to dateJan. 2020

• Tracking approximately 70 member-service effortsJan. 2021

TYPES OF SERVICES
Communications

Cybersecurity

Distribution Engineering

Distribution Reliability

Finance

Financial Planning

Human Resources

Information Technology

Legal

NERC Compliance

Retail Power Delivery

Strategic Planning

27

More FMPA Team Members Involved in Providing Services

Page 394

Item #17.



Cybersecurity and IT Require Increasing Focus

• Changing risk landscape
 Malware, ransomware, denial-of-service 

attacks continue to impact municipalities 
 Phishing attempts evolving and maturing
 Cyber insurance likely to add risk 

profiles/requirements to offset higher costs
 Supply chain risks and responsibilities 

increasing

• Be prepared with cyber incident response 
plan, like utilities have a storm plan

• Needed IT skills are evolving, talented 
resources are scarce

28

Threats Evolving and Costs Growing

BY THE NUMBERS

Percentage of malware 
delivered via email 94%

Average downtime for 
a ransomware event 16 days

of employees fail 
phishing tests38%

Average cost of a data 
breach in 2020$3.9M

Increase in U.S. spending on 
cybersecurity over 10 years500%

Page 395

Item #17.



FMPA Has Cybersecurity Expertise

• Network assessments, inventories, vulnerability scanning
• Firewall configuration review, validation of efforts, network 

documentation
• Incident Response Plan and Disaster Recovery Plan review
• Conversations around Cyber Mutual Assistance
• Risk exposure from internet connections
• Systems backups and ransomware exposure/risk review
• Review of existing services offered by public power, 

federal grants, other sources
• Risk review of cloud services
• Member phishing program

Secure

Defend

Contain

Manage

Anticipate

29

Many Services Available to Help

Page 396

Item #17.



NERC Regulatory Compliance Focus Remains a Priority

• NERC registered entities include 15 members plus FMPA, FMPP, & JEA

• FMPA provides NERC compliance support to members

• CY 2020 member-support activities:
 5 (pre-COVID) in-person Member visits
 2 FMPA-led peer reviews (FPUA & Ocala) and 2 spot checks (OUC & Lakeland)
 20-30 participants from 13 member cities & JEA on bi-weekly compliance 

coordination calls
 40 participants from 13 member cities & JEA, NERC & SERC at FMPA Annual 

Compliance Seminar (Sept. 29-30, 2020)

• NERC’s 2021 strategy focus areas include:
 Expand risk-based focus in standards, compliance monitoring, enforcement
 Potentially add new standard requirements for numerous priority risk areas

30

Need for Compliance Expertise and Resources Remains High

FMPA 
Compliance

Member 
Support

Industry 
Influence

Page 397

Item #17.



Should FMPA Maintain/Expand Value-Added Services?

31

If Expansion Desired, Additional Resources May Be Required

System
Mapping

System
Plan & Design

Fuse 
Coordination

Substation 
Maintenance

Metering 
Technologies

Rate Structure 
Analysis

Cybersecurity
IT and OT

Regulatory 
Compliance

Financial 
Planning

Customer 
Communication

Human 
Resources Legal

Industry 
Trends 

Customer 
Desires

Utility 
Capabilities

Page 398

Item #17.



People Assets

32
Page 399

Item #17.



Since 2016, Reallocated Resources to Member Support

Added Resources To

Member Services

Engineering Services

Business Development & 
System Operations

Financial Planning & Budgeting

Information Technology & 
Operations Technology

Reallocated Resources From

Risk and Audit

Legal

System Planning

Compliance

33

No Ability for Further Reallocation to Members and Analytics

Changes in FMPA human resource allocations from 2016 through 2020 
Page 400

Item #17.



FMPA Trending with Central Florida Demographics

34

FMPA More Diverse Than National Electric Industry

5% 8%
14%

85%

17%

9%

21%

79%

8% 10%

18%

66%

25%

13%

35%

65%

4%

17%

24%

46%

10% 7%

51% 49%

ASIAN BLACK OR AFRICAN 
AMERICAN

HISPANIC OR 
LATINO

WHITES OVER  55 VETERANS FEMALES MALES

Electric Power G & T and Distribution FMPA Employees Central Florida Demographics

SOURCES: Electric Power G&T data from Department of Vital Statics, Utility Industry; Central Florida data from Data USA, Orlando-Kissimmee-Sanford 
Metropolitan Statistical Area

Page 401

Item #17.



FMPA Team Demographics 2020 Compared to 2016

35

Organically Shifting Toward Central Florida Demographics

4%

8%

12%

37%

8%

33%

66%

75%

8%

10%

18%

25%

13%

35%

63%

66%

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80%

Asian

Black or African American

Hispanic or Latino

Over  55

Veterans

Females

Males

Whites

2020 FMPA 2016 FMPA Page 402

Item #17.



FMPA Fleet Team Proven Strategic Value

• Utilize all 70-plant staff at Cane Island, 
Treasure Coast and Stock Island plus FMPA’s 
Generation Team among plant sites during 
regular operations and outages

• Projects range broadly from technical I&C 
type work to mechanical, construction and 
contractor oversight

• Over last 2 FY, 100 days of shared resources 
each year

• A recent project was the battery enclosure 
at Stock Island completely constructed by 
Cane Island staff for a savings of $40k vs. 
next best alternative

36

Fleet Resource Sharing Helps Maintain Reliability, Lowers Costs

Page 403

Item #17.



Plant Staffing Key Element to Strong Plant Reliability 

• Potential for key retirements in 2-3 years
 Plant management and FMPA proactively filling certain roles to provide a 

smooth changeover

• Working with FPUA on a conversion to FMPA staffing to ensure 
competitive in hiring market
 Provides means for different base salary and benefits package
 Overall, no additional cost to ARP

• Overall fleet is well positioned with appropriate depth of talent and 
resources that facilitates strong succession planning

37

Must Ensure Well Positioned for Forthcoming Retirements

Page 404

Item #17.



Compensation Improving for Some Craft Employees

38

Salary Increases Since 2018 Providing More Competitive Pay

Small Members Medium Members Large Members

Journeyman Lineworker Salary for Cities by Utility Size

 $-

 $10,000

 $20,000

 $30,000

 $40,000

 $50,000

 $60,000

 $70,000

 $80,000

 $90,000

 $100,000

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18

2018 2020

Page 405

Item #17.



Summary of Talent Management

39

• FMPA requires more and broader expertise than before
• Increased Member Services requires more expertise
• Members are utilizing the expertise of staff more than ever before
• To continue at existing rate or expanding to meet needs, new 

resources may be needed in a few key areas
• Developing our top talent continues
• Acquiring diverse and experienced talent is a priority
• Fleet sharing provides great productivity and new hiring options at 

the plants are helping us stay competitive

Page 406

Item #17.



What Does the Future Hold?
Ten-Year Resource Plan

40
Page 407

Item #17.



Future Load Growth

41
Page 408

Item #17.



ARP Energy and Peak Grow ~0.9% Per Year*

5,492

6,108 6,612

0

3,000

6,000

9,000

2012 (Act.) 2021 2030

Energy (GWh)

1,121

1,286 1,396

0

600

1,200

1,800

2012 (Act.) 2021 2030

Peak (MW)

42

Post-Recession (‘12-’20) Growth At ~1.7% Per Year

*Reflects current All Requirements Project Participants. Excludes other wholesale sales.

‘20 peak down 0.9% from ‘19 due to weather 
& COVID.  Long-term based on normal.

Page 409

Item #17.



Some ARP Members Growing, Some Not

Member Weather-Adj.1 (‘13-’20) FY Actual Growth (‘13-’20) FY FY 2020 Actual NEL (GWh)

Newberry 3.9% 3.5% 40.9

Kissimmee 2.1% 2.7% 1,682.2

Ocala 1.2% 1.2% 1,350.5

Bushnell2 1.0% 1.6% 55.9

Ft. Pierce 1.0% 1.5% 588.7

Ft. Meade 1.0% 1.4% 44.8

Leesburg 0.7% 1.1% 505.5

Clewiston 0.4% 0.9% 107.3

Green Cove Springs 0.1% 0.0% 113.6

Havana 0.1% 0.1% 24.7

Jacksonville Beach 0.0% 0.2% 728.4

Keys 0.0% 0.6% 771.5

Starke -0.3% 0.0% 68.5

43

Load Growth Concentrated in a Few Locales

1 - Weather adjustment based on 10-yr rolling average.
2 – Bushell growth rate reflects estimated growth excluding new SECO customers.

Page 410

Item #17.



Some Other Members Growing, Some Not

44

More Members with Positive Change

Seminole grew (w/o Lee) at 2.2%, Duke Energy Florida grew at 0.9% and FPL without Gulf grew at 1.4%.

Utility
Sales Growth CY 

2014-19

Alachua 2.6%

Bartow1 1.9%

Blountstown1 -1.9%

Chattahoochee 0.4%

Gainesville 1.4%

Homestead 2.0%

Jacksonville2 1.0%

Lake Worth Beach 4.3%

Lakeland 1.4%

Utility
Sales Growth CY 

2014-19

Moore Haven 5.0%

Mount Dora1 0.8%

New Smyrna Beach 1.8%

Orlando 1.9%

Quincy1 -1.2%

Tallahassee 0.6%

Wauchula1 0.8%

Williston 1.9%

Winter Park1 -0.5%

1 – 2019 data not available. Rates shown reflect 2014-18. 2 - Jacksonville growth rate reflects native load only.
Page 411

Item #17.



Residential Customer Growth Primary Driver 

0.0%

0.5%

1.0%

1.5%

2.0%

2.5%

KUA Newberry Green
Cove
Sprgs

Ocala Leesburg Ft. Pierce Bushnell Beaches
Energy

Keys
Energy

Ft.
Meade

Clewiston Havana Starke

Projected Growth in Residential Customers Over Next 10 Years (%)

45

Consistent with Prior Several Years of Forecasts, ARP Avg. ~1%

ARP Average ~1%

Page 412

Item #17.



EVs Could Increase Load ~2.5% by 2030

• ~60k-70k light duty EVs today, could grow 
to increase FL peak 2.5% by 2030 (versus 
case with no assumed impact)

• Affluent suburban/urban first, rural later
• Member strategies could include:

 Charging station development & 
investment

 Joint bidding for infrastructure needs

 Charging station pricing

 Feeder studies to determine pain points 
with higher penetration levels

 Regional market potential studies

Today, 
0.3%

2030, 
2.5%

0%

1%

2%

3%

Est. FL EV Demand Impact (%)

46

Members Can Engage in Various EV Integration Strategies

Page 413

Item #17.



Distributed Resources Could Offset Energy ~2% by ‘30

• Current forecast assumes ~2% energy 
offset from roof-top solar by 2030

• Net peak hour impacts lower, some 
Members have little to no roof-top

• Potential member involvement for roof-
top solar:
 Proper interconnection requirements

 Understanding distribution access costs

 Value of solar sold back to grid

 Distribution system model integration

• Members provide installation services?

47

Various Strategies Exist for Roof-top Solar Interactions

This Photo by Unknown Author is licensed under CC BY

Page 414

Item #17.

https://www.australiansolarquotes.com.au/2015/03/02/rooftop-solar-power/
https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by/3.0/


Supply and Demand Balance

48
Page 415

Item #17.



ARP Has No Capacity Needs Until 2028

49

Capacity Needs of ~40-120 MW Thereafter

Small CC

NuclearLarge CC

Coal Small CC

Peaking

Stanton A PPA

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2021 2023 2025 2027 2029 2031 2033 2035 2037 2039

FMPA 2021 Load and Resource Balance (MW)
Oleander PPA

STN 1 
Conversion

STN 2 
Conversion

Solar needed for 50% CO2 reduction by 
‘27 and 60% and 65% by '30 and '35

Peaker Replacement

Existing Solar
Load Management

Page 416

Item #17.



Capacity and Emissions Milestones

50

Capacity Mix Changes Along with Expiration of External Sales

Milestones Year

Stanton A PPA Goes Away After 2023

Load Management Initiatives in Some Form 2023

SEC 1 Conversion to Gas 2024

SEC 2 Conversion to Gas 2026

External Wholesale Sales End (e.g. Winter Park, Williston) 2027

50% CO2 Reduction with End of Coal Generation and Add 200 MW Solar 2027

Peakers Reach End of Life 2035 or sooner

Solar Capacity Increases to Increase Emission Reductions? 2035 or sooner

CO2 reduction goals may be set, but not without an impact on costs.

Page 417

Item #17.



ARP Baseload Supply Adequate

51

Load Management and Seasonal Purchases for Future Needs

Large CC

Stanton A
Cane Island 2

Peakers

Existing Solar

0

300

600

900

1,200

1,500

1,800

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24

FMPA ARP Resources Compared to Load (2028) (MW)

Summer Peak

Mild Day

Winter Peak

SEC 1&2 gas peaking post-conversion.

Load Management

Solar needed for 50% CO2
reduction

Page 418

Item #17.



Solar Does Not Always Cover the Peak 

0.0

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.5

0.6

0.7

0.8

0.9

1.0

400

600

800

1,000

1,200

1,400

1 3 5 7 9 11 13 15 17 19 21 23 1 3 5 7 9 11 13 15 17 19 21 23 1 3 5 7 9 11 13 15 17 19 21 23

M
W

Normalized Solar vs. Peak Load Days

Winter January Peak Spring March Peak
Summer June Peak

Peak 
Occurs 
Before 
Solar

Peak 
Occurs 
After 
Solar

52

Peaking Generation Needs Must Be Carefully Evaluated

Solar

Page 419

Item #17.



Stanton Displaces Lower Cost Gas Based Energy

53

Actual TCEC and Cane 3 & 4 Cost Much Lower Than Stanton

* Actual variable costs include fuel, emission additives, & certain O&M categories.

$/
M

W
h

Page 420

Item #17.



FMPP Can Add Value & Accommodate Goals

• Rule or structural changes that allow FMPP to evolve with members while 
reducing costs
 Fair marginal pricing that incents both pool buyer and seller – creates value for all
 Appropriate valuation of spinning reserve and fast start capable assets
 Expansion to reduce solar intermittency risk and optimize dispatch

• FMPP daily operation improvements to reduce costs
 Measurement of the things that matter
 Opportunities for 24/7 marketing & position optimization
 Better load forecast tools especially with added solar
 Add resources to better plan for and manage intermittent solar as it grows dramatically
 Appropriate operation controls to not overpay for balancing

54

Improve Daily Operations, Expand Footprint and Reduce Cost

Page 421

Item #17.



Keys Storage Mitigates Unique Transmission Limitation

• Storage could avoid transmission transfer limit increase and capex
• Keys Coop/Keys Energy transmission limit could require material 

generation runs as soon as summer 2024 with expected load growth
• Batteries can augment on-island generation for resolving loss of tie line
• Specific storm hardening needed for salt, wind and storm surge
• Specific opportunities are currently being investigated
• Secondary opportunity to avoid capacity costs if an older asset (1960s 

vintage) experiences end-of-life event

55

Opportunities Being Evaluated to Determine Feasibility by Fall 2021

Page 422

Item #17.



Key Decisions Within Ten Year Planning Horizon

Decision Implication Alternative(s)
Stanton 1 and 2 Cost and Emissions 
reduction timing

Timing impacts cost reduction and emissions 
goals, sooner is better, operate as peaker or 
more seasonally, near term dispatch 
appropriately

Market capacity, unit upgrades, more solar

Load Management Alternative to self-build or market capacity Market capacity if market capacity is cheaper

Additional solar resources Emission reduction, additional energy to 
support customer desire and/or meeting 
additional emission targets

Stay with lower cost and higher emitting fleet 
post 2027

Battery storage opportunity at Keys or at 
other locations

Reduced long-term cost, low-cost energy 
used to defer transmission cost;
potential ancillary value from solar

Defer if capital cost and O&M cost not lower 
than status quo

Pool Expansion and rule changes to reflect 
complete value of generation

Solar growth for FMPP participants will drive 
the need for market products and potentially 
larger base to mitigate intermittent solar 
generation

Less effective dispatch and higher costs for 
existing pool participants

Cane 1 Overhaul 12 MWs of increased capability per unit at 
low cost

Alternative resource(s) evaluated based on 
cost via Asset Management program

56

Market Alternatives Will be Explored

Page 423

Item #17.



Rates Competitive But Must Improve

• Rates are driven by natural gas prices, which are in the ~$2.50 to $4/MMBtu range

• ARP has no need for significant new capacity until 2028

 Stanton coal to natural gas conversions push capacity needs further into the future
 Capacity needs are seasonal and involve comparison of market alternatives, load 

management, unit upgrades and possible solar expansion
 Peaking resource replacement possible within ten-year window, but can be displaced by 

additional solar if desired with careful evaluation of operational reserve need

 Batteries possible solution to transmission limits for Key West by 2024

• With ~200 MW additional solar, can achieve 50% emission reduction from 2005 levels by 2027

• Key decision for ten-year period includes trade-off between additional solar to achieve further 
emissions reductions and increased cost of higher targets

57

ARP Projected Ten-Year Rates Gas-Price Driven

Page 424

Item #17.



Environmental Responsibility

58
Page 425

Item #17.



Power Sector CO2 Declined ~33% Over Last 15 Years

800

900

1,000

1,100

1,200

1,300

1,400

1,500

2005 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

59

FL/FMPA CO2 Emissions Declined by Switching from Coal/Oil to Gas

CO2 Emissions (lbs./MWh)

U.S.
Florida

FMPA

SOURCES: EIA and EPA’s Acid Rain Program database. Reflects emissions relative to total estimated generation w/renewables.

US declines due to 
switch from coal to 
more gas and wind.

Page 426

Item #17.



U.S. Regional Electric Generation Emissions (lbs./MWh)

60

Emissions Driven in Part by Access to Natural Resources

Pacific Northwest
454

CA
447

Rockies
1,625

Midwest
1,070 East Central

1,153

Southwest 901

Greater TX
982

Southeast
810

Northeast 
510

1,260

Hawaii 1,659
Page 427

Item #17.



Nuclear
19%

Coal
24%

Natural 
Gas
37%

Hydro
7%

Wind 
7%

Solar
3%

Other
3%

US Today

61

FMPA Growing to 18% CO2 Free by 2027, No Coal/More Gas

3,811,150
GWh

Solar
13%

Nuclear
5%

Natural 
Gas
81%

Other
1%

Purchases
0%

FMPA 2027 (Est.)

7,811 GWh2

Solar, 1%

Coal
13%

Nuclear
5%

Natural 
Gas
80%

Other1

1%

Purchases
0%

FMPA Today (CY20)

7,811 GWh

1 – Includes US Sugar, residual and distillate fuel oil.
2 – Assumes same level of generation.

U.S. Energy from ~30% CO2 Free, 24% Coal Remaining

Page 428

Item #17.



FMPA CO2 Projected to Decline Significantly by 2027*

62

50% Decline from 2005 to 2027: More Gas and Solar, No Coal 

Mare gas and 
solar energy
reduce 
emissions.

50 – 200 MW 
of solar 
energy

*Reflects emissions relative to total estimated generation w/renewables.

1,440

938
720

2005 2020 2027

CO2 Emissions for FMPA’s All-Requirements Project Generation
Pounds per Megawatt hour, historic and projected

Heavier coal mix and 
some oil and high-

emitting gas generation
Much more natural gas, 

less coal and oil More natural gas, no coal 
and ~200 MW new solar

Page 429

Item #17.



FMPA Generation Mix Moves Toward Gas and Solar

63

Targeting 50% CO2 Reduction vs. 2005 Levels by 2027

7,811 GWh 7,811 GWh2

1 – Includes US Sugar, residual and distillate fuel oil.
2 – Assumes same level of generation.
3 – Additional solar reflects capacity needed over and above already planned solar at a 30% capacity factor.

Year / CO2
Reduction

Addl. 
Solar 

(MW)3

Gas 
Energy 

(%/Total)

2027 
(50%) 209 81%

2030 
(60%) 685 65%

2035 
(65%) 951 56%

2035 
(70%) 1,199 48%

Solar
13%

Nuclear
5%

Natural 
Gas
81%

Other
1%

Purchases
0%

FMPA 2027 (Est.)

Solar, 1%

Coal
13%

Nuclear
5%

Natural 
Gas
80%

Other1

1%

Purchases
0%

FMPA Today (CY20)

Page 430

Item #17.



Increasing CO2 Reductions Comes at a Cost

50% 
CO2 Reductions

Inflationary
cost increases 

expected through 
2027 while 

achieving 50% CO2
reduction from 

2005 levels

70% 
CO2 Reductions

20% 
cost increases
using natural gas 

generation for 
reliability and 
peaking, solar 

power increases, 
some additional 
battery storage

97% 
CO2 Reductions

75%
cost increases
with significant 

solar power plus 
battery backup 
with natural gas 
only available for 
emergency use

100% 
CO2 Reductions

250%
cost increases
with significant 
amounts of new 

solar plus dramatic 
increase in battery 
capacity to provide 
days of reserves for 

cloudy periods

64

Power Costs Increases Could Range from Inflationary to 250%

Page 431

Item #17.



FL Has Significant CO2 Reduction via Solar Adds by ‘35

Nuclear
6%

Solar
3%

Natural 
Gas
66%

Coal
12%

Other
13%

Today
Nuclear

1%

Solar
44%

Battery
33%

Other
0.6%

Nat. 
Gas
22%

97% CO2 Reduction

65

Natural Gas Back-up Remains with Various Levels of Batteries Increases

57,194 MW 265,112 MW

Nuclear
3%

Solar
45%

Battery
4%

Other
1%

Nat. Gas
47%

70% CO2 Reduction

123,247 MW
Page 432

Item #17.



We Have a Lot to Feel Good About on Environment

66

ARP on Track for 50% CO2 Reduction by 2027

• FMPA and Florida emissions down significantly since 2005

• Biggest near-term opportunity to reduce emissions is Stanton 1 & 2 coal to 
gas conversion set for no later than 2025 and 2027

 Earlier conversions would be better economically and environmentally

 Eliminating must run to boil off water at Stanton priority for costs and emissions

• FMPA on track for 50% reduction in emissions vs. 2005 by 2027 with ~200 
MW of additional solar beyond Phase 2

• Further CO2 reductions require careful balance between performance and 
cost with reaching 70% reduction by 2035 requiring ~1,000 MW more solar

Page 433

Item #17.



More CO2 Reduction Requires Balance With Cost

• How important is moving conversion dates up to 
members’ emission and financial objectives?

• FMPA on track to reach the goal
 What are the next milestones desired?

• Choosing the path of continual CO2 reduction 
requires a careful balance
 70% reduction requires ~1,000 MW more solar and 

rate increase of 20 – 40% above inflationary costs
 Rates could grow as much as 200 -300% as CO2

reduction approaches 100%
67

What Are the Next Emission Reduction Milestones Desired?

50
Reduce carbon 

emissions 50% from 
2005 levels by 2027

50
Page 434

Item #17.



Asset and Capital Plan and Rate Projections

68
Page 435

Item #17.



Assets Currently Competitive, Must Monitor Cost

• Majority of resources competitive vs market, but not exceedingly high
 Exception, Stanton 1 & 2 not competitive in the market

• Two CTs at Stock Island of original vintage dating back to 1960s 
approaching life expectancy

• Capacity market is reflective of surplus; unit cost control must be 
active

• Solar and Peaking resources are the focus in the next 5 - 7 years

• Longer term, energy storage will become important tools if solar 
investment grows by 600 – 1,000 MW

69

Limited Capital Required to Maintain Competitiveness

Page 436

Item #17.



Future ARP Capital Funding Needs ~ $12 - $15M/Year

70

Debt Funding a Very Good Option in Current Rate Environment

$18 

$35 

$8 

$17 $27 
$17 

$5 $5 $4 $4 
 $-

 $10

 $20

 $30

 $40

2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030

$M
ill

io
ns

Projected ARP Capital Expenditures and Funding

Annual R&R 
Funding

$40M Financing 
Assumed

Annual Capital 
Expenditures

$40M Financing 
Assumed

Includes current projections of Stanton conversion costs
Page 437

Item #17.



 $-

 $50

 $100

 $150

 $200

 $250

2021 2023 2025 2027 2029 2031 2033 2035

$M
ill

io
ns Fixed TARP

ARP Demand Costs Projected to Remain Stable

71

Aided by Cost Savings from Stanton Conversion

Future 
Bonds

Net Other Demand Costs*

Existing Bonds

Member Capacity

PPA Capacity

Optional TARP

Rate Protection Deposits

* Primarily includes fixed O&M costs, gas transportation costs, and allocated Agency costs.

R&R Deposits

Page 438

Item #17.



Overall ARP Costs Projected Stable Based on Current Gas 
Forward Strip

72

$69 $70 $68 $67 
$71 $70 $72 $72 $73 $76 

 $-

 $20

 $40

 $60

 $80

2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030

Projected ARP Average All-in Costs ($/MWh)

Demand Transmission Energy
Page 439

Item #17.



Keeping Rates Under $70/MWh Requires Savings*

-10

-5

0

5

10

15

20

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

$M

Total Dollars Required to Keep Rates < $70/MWh ($M)

73

Good Probability to Deliver Below $70/MWh In Early Years

*This graph shows the reduction required each year to get to the targeted price. Negative 
values imply that a savings is required. 

Fuel Prices being low combined 
with great fleet availability drives 
majority of cost savings to budget. 

Out years challenged by network 
transmission, significant capex and 
fuel pricing. 

Page 440

Item #17.



Transmission Costs Escalating ~10% Over Next 5 Years

0.00

2.00

4.00

6.00

8.00

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028

Projected Transmission Costs ($/kW-mo.)1

Duke

FPL

74

Gap Decline Limits Benefit of New Transmission Connections

1 – Includes storm adder, where applicable.

Duke:  10% /year increase
FPL:  13% /year increase

Page 441

Item #17.



Stanton Conversion Allows Operation for Peaking

• Project fixed costs should decrease 
with conversion

• Utilization should also decline with 
conversion

• $/MWh Project costs projected higher, 
but replacement energy should be 
cheaper than Stanton energy costs

• Participants should see lower overall 
power costs due to conversion 

75

Participants Should See Lower Post-Conversion Cost Overall

Assumes annual capacity factor of 15% after conversion

$58 

$92 $92 

$0

$20

$40

$60

$80

$100

Budget
2021

2025 2030

Conversion
Assumed 
in 2024 Fuel

Other

O&M

Projected Stanton Project Participant Costs ($/MWh)

Page 442

Item #17.



Stanton II Conversion Allows Operation for Peaking

• Project fixed costs and utilization 
should decrease with conversion

• 2026 & 2027 $/MWh costs projected 
higher due to combination of final 
debt years and low capacity factor

• $/MWh Project costs projected higher, 
but replacement energy should be 
cheaper than Stanton 2 energy costs

• Participants should see lower overall 
power costs due to conversion 

76

Participants Should See Lower Post-Conversion Cost Overall

Assumes annual capacity factor of 15% after conversion

Projected Stanton II Project Participant Costs ($/MWh)

$85 

$208 

$173 

$105 

$0

$50

$100

$150

$200

$250

Budget
2021

2026 2027 2030

Final 
Debt Year

Conversion
Assumed 
in 2026

O&M

Other

Debt

Fuel

Page 443

Item #17.



St. Lucie Costs Expected to Decline Significantly

77

Extending Debt Life Allows Greater Immediate Rate Reductions

$68 
$60 $60 

$36 

$0

$20

$40

$60

$80

Budget
2021

2022 2026 2030

w/o Debt Extension
Final 
Debt 
Year

O&M

Other

Debt

Projected St. Lucie Project Participant Costs ($/MWh)

• St. Lucie nuclear facility is cost 
competitive with no carbon emissions

• Opportunity to spread remaining debt 
to 2031 lowers cost by $~9M/yr. 
($13/MWh) through 2026

• St. Lucie asset life now extended until 
2043

• Future capex may be required if unit 
life extended beyond 2043 for another 
20 years

Page 444

Item #17.



Targeted Cost Reductions for 2021 - 2025

78

• Opportunities to decrease $/MWh energy costs and potential 
value
 Accelerate conversion of Stanton 1 & 2 to gas, reduce fixed costs and 

reduce energy take from plant - $8 - $17M/year once completed
 Additional prepaid gas – ~$2M/year (20,000 units) - $3M/year currently
 Pool expansion resulting in further dispatch cost savings $2 - $4M/year

• Opportunities to decrease fixed costs
 Finance significant capital additions and lower R&R - ~$4M/year
 3rd party capacity and energy sales and optimization $8 - 10M/year 

total value

Page 445

Item #17.



Summary of Projects

79

• Stanton 1 conversion assumed in 2024, Stanton 2 in 2026
• Stanton 1 & 2 expected to reduce fixed cost and operate more as peakers

post-conversion
 Replacement energy from alternative resources lowers net cost
 Align actual costs billed and dispatch costs to appropriately dispatch low-cost gas

• Explore Stanton 1 & 2 cost reductions in O&M and fuel areas to continue 
improvement

• Focus on stopping low-cost gas units from being displaced by coal
• St. Lucie operational license through 2043, strong operating record allow 

debt life to be extended beyond 2026
• St. Lucie costs decline significantly with debt extension, remain stable

Page 446

Item #17.



Risks and Opportunities

80
Page 447

Item #17.



Risks for FMPA

• Risks
 Gas price swings affect end customers’ rates – market or environmentally initiated
 Carbon legislation and impact on coal and gas units and pricing to consumers
 Cost reductions anticipated for Stanton are delayed
 Uneconomic operation of Stanton post fuel conversion due to water burn constraints
 Transmission cost headwinds from Network Service and PTP providers
 Loss or lack of growth of member load due to economic conditions and COVID 

recovery
 Cost of balancing system with significant solar higher than expected
 Steam generator replacement on St. Lucie or other life extension investment
 Increased customer demand for additional services

81

Fuel Prices, Regulatory Uncertainty, and Realized Cost Declines

Page 448

Item #17.



Opportunities for FMPA

• Opportunities
 Active asset management program for controllable costs and capitalization of needed R&R
 Ongoing debt restructuring
 Expedited conversion of SEC 1 and 2 with new participation agreement
 Use of low/no cost customer demand management to meet peak
 New resources or market alternatives for aging resources (e.g. energy storage)
 Leverage opportunities associated with any new or extended renewable tax credits
 Sell excess economic energy at margin above FMPP option and intra-period capacity when 

long
 Optimize the intra-year energy and capacity positions, unit outages, natural gas position
 Exploration of additional pool partners or expanded imbalance markets

82

Managing Assets and Debt Actively Key to Cost Control

Page 449

Item #17.



10 Year Planning Horizon Has Risks

Risk Impacts Mitigation Options

Natural Gas Price Volatility Volatile fuel prices may cause:
• high rates for ARP with high gas prices
• high coal Project rates with low gas 

prices

• Active Fuel Cost Management
• Allow individual members to 

hedge energy costs

Penetration rate of 
Distributed Generation

• Could result in load loss and solar PV 
integration issues

• Could increase demand for additional 
utility services for some customers

• Understand cost of service and 
interconnection needs

• Solar subscription product

Load decline instead of 
growth

Load loss could result in additional excess 
capacity increasing rates

• Reduce retail energy cost to 
encourage sales

• Sell excess in wholesale
Environmental Regulations 
or desire for reduced 
carbon footprint

• Increased retail rates in trade-off 
between accelerated reduction

• Early retirement of thermal units 
possibly stranding debt

• Incremental resource reviews
• Complete 20-year IRP
• Add solar to offset

83

Mitigation Options Exist for Longer Term Focus Areas

Page 450

Item #17.



Conclusions

84
Page 451

Item #17.



Conclusion – There is More Work to Do

• Rates are becoming competitive but need to improve to close gap 
with lowest cost IOU in FL – focus on major cost reduction efforts?

• Major environmental regulations expected, significant solar 
expansion likely – need to consider additional solar in ~2025?

• Battery opportunity may evolve over next 2 -3 years for Key Energy 
and FPL load serving

• ARP may need capacity in 2028 depending on amount of solar 
added; resources beyond solar will be peaking/fast response

• Continued Member Services expansion for reliability improvement, 
financial/strategic planning, IT/cyber, etc. requires added resources

85

Build Off Progress Since 2019 w/New Targets

Page 452

Item #17.



Electric Demand, Supply and Generation Mix 
Changes

86
Page 453

Item #17.



US Electric Sales Growth More Tepid

87

Only 0.4% Per Year Recovery Since 2012

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

3,000

3,500

4,000

4,500

1990 2000 2015 2019

USA - Total and Industrial Electric Sales (TWh)

Industry Growth over 20 years -0.3% 
US growth over 20 years 0.7%

US Total Electric Sales

Industrial Sales

Source: EIA State Profiles (2020 AEO)

Since ’15:
Industry Growth Rate  0.4% 
Percent of US Sales 26%

Page 454

Item #17.



FL
13.3

US
10.7

NY
6.9

CA
6.4

0

5

10

15

2019

Annual Consumption (MWh/Customer)

C
A

FL Uses More Electricity Per Customer

88

Cooling Load Drives Higher Residential Need

Sources: EIA, Woods and Poole, Statista 

FL
11.70

US
13.01

NY
17.94

CA
19.15

0

5

10

15

20

2019

Ave. Rate (Cents/kWh)

C
A

Page 455

Item #17.



20%
Nuclear

19%
Nuclear

18%
Nuclear

15%
Nuclear

48%
Coal

24%
Coal 17%

Coal
17%
Coal

22%
Gas

37%
Gas 37%

Gas
36%
Gas

Hydro
Hydro

Hydro Hydro

7%, Wind 
12%, Wind 

12%, Wind 

6%, Solar 10%, Solar
Other Other Other Other

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

2007 2019 2024 2029

Historical and Projected US Generation Mix

US Far More Balanced Overall Than FL

89

Solar and Wind are Steadily Growing

31%28%19%
11%

Source: EIA 2020 AEO
Page 456

Item #17.



Gas Drives FL Generation Mix

90

Coal Expected to Be Displaced by Solar and Gas by 20291

Nuclear Nuclear Nuclear Nuclear

Coal
Coal Coal

Gas Gas
Gas

Gas

Oil
Solar

SolarInterchange
Other Other Other

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

2009 2019 2024 2029

Historical and Projected FRCC Generation Mix

Source:  FL PSC
1 – FMPA expects all FL coal to be retired or converted to gas by 2029.

22%

15%

Page 457

Item #17.



Solar Capacity Expected to Increase 6-Fold

91

External Forces Could Cause Even Faster Solar Growth

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

0

50

100

150

200

250

2010 2014 2018 2022 2026 2030

GWGW

Historical and Projected Solar Capacity Additions 

National

FL

Source: SNL Financial Power Market Forecast (December 2020) Blended with IRENA Future of Solar PV Nov 2019 & FRCC Database
Page 458

Item #17.



FL Utility Solar Grows to ~14 GW by 2030

92

Transmission Queue Far Exceeds Site Plans

0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

Existing 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030

(M
W

s)

Source: FRCC Load and Resource Plan (2020)

Queue

Nameplate

Firm to Grid

Page 459

Item #17.



Storage Cost Dropped 30% Since 2018

$0

$25

$50

$75

$100

Costs Benefits

$/
M

W
h

Long Term Average Cost of Battery Storage* Vs. Benefit

93

Capital Cost Needs to Decline ~80% for Net Energy Benefit

Fixed Costs

Fuel Cost

Fuel Cost

Energy 
Benefit

*Reflects 1 MW Lithium-Ion System with 4 Hour Daily Discharge.

Lower gas prices give peakers
the advantage.

Peaker:
HR: 13
Fuel: $3.40

Page 460

Item #17.



FL IOUs Largest in the U.S.

• Top 10 IOUs have a total market 
capitalization of ~$543 billion

• Top 10 IOUs makes up 60% of IOU 
industry market cap

• There were almost 100 IOUs 20 years 
ago; now, 40

• Largest (NEE) is 5-times as big as the 
largest 20 years ago
 Median is 6-times larger than median 

entity 22 years ago

94

Market Capitalization Reflects Consolidation*

0 40 80 120

PSEG

Con Ed

Xcel

Sempra

Exelon

AEP

Duke

Southern

Dominion

NextEra

Market Capitalization in $ Billions

*Source: PFM Financial
Page 461

Item #17.



Natural Gas Market Expectations

95
Page 462

Item #17.



Shale Gas Rapidly Increased Production

96

Uncertainty in 2020 Could Alter Expected Continual Increases

53
55 56

58
63

66 66

71
74 73

75

84

93 92

87

45

55

65

75

85

95

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Annual Natural Gas Production Volumes (Bcf/Day)

Source: EIA

Through July

Projected

Page 463

Item #17.



Power Demand, Mexico Export Way Up

97

Power Demand has Outpaced Industrial Demand

Residential

Commercial
Industrial

Power

Pipeline

0

15

30

45

60

75

90

2000 2005 2010 2015 2019

Bc
f/

Da
y

Gas Demand by Type

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

2000 2005 2010 2015 2019
Bc

f/
Da

y

North American Gas Exchange

Canada Import

Mexico Export

Total Exports

Page 464

Item #17.



LNG Export Capacity Quadrupled Since 2017

98

Global Economic Uncertainty Clouds Growth Projections

Page 465

Item #17.



EVA Projects Steady Gas Price Growth

$0.00

$1.00

$2.00

$3.00

$4.00

$5.00

2021 2024 2027 2030 2033 2036 2039

Projected Natural Gas Prices EVA (Henry Hub) and Forwards ($/MMBtu)

99

Power + LNG Demand Outpaces Supply Gains

EVA Forwards

Sources: EVA Q4 2020 Natural Gas Price Forecast, SNL Financial
Page 466

Item #17.



Strategic Planning Session

100
Page 467

Item #17.



 

STAFF REPORT  
CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

TO:  City Council Regular Session MEETING DATE: March 2, 2021 

FROM: Mike Null 

SUBJECT: First Reading of Ordinance O-05-2021, Amending Section 90-61 of the City Code to allow 

security and night-lights under certain circumstances. Mike Null 
 

BACKGROUND 

 

******Background from February 16, 2021 Council Meeting***************** 

 

For at least 20 years, the City has not been installing new security lights (night-lights) for electric 

customers.  We receive several requests each year for the installation of these security lights.  It is 

common for electric utilities to install security lights for their customers in exchange for a monthly fee. 

 

The electric department staff has completed a cost analysis of re-starting the program.  We would 

currently use an LED light that is more energy efficient and also has a 10 year warranty (and therefore a 

10 year life expectancy).The electric usage portion of installing and maintaining the light is estimated at 

$4.32 per month based on 12 hours per day usage.  Installation with one lineman and one apprentice 

would take about an hour.  With all of the costs included, the following fees are presented for Council 

discussion and direction: 

 If we charged $10 per month without any upfront fees it would take 43 months to start seeing a 

return on investment. 

 If we charged $15 per month without any upfront fees it would take 23 months to start seeing a 

return on investment. 

 If we charged $20 per month without any upfront fees it would take 14 months to start seeing a 

return on investment. 

 

Following is our current section of City Code that addresses security lights: 

************************** 

Sec. 90-61. - Security and night-lights. 

 

(a) The city shall charge such owner or tenant a fee as follows for existing security or night-lights. 

The city will not install such lights or repair/replace parts other than light head, photo eye or lamp. 

(1) 175-watt mercury vapor light or 100-watt high-pressure sodium light monthly charge: $10.25. 

(2) 400-watt mercury vapor light or 250-watt high-pressure sodium light monthly charge: $20.00. 

(3) Relocate light head, photo eye or lamp fee of $25.00 during normal business hours. 

 

(b) The requesting party shall agree in writing that any poles, lights, or accessories placed upon his 

property shall remain the sole property of the city, and the city shall have the right to remove such 

equipment at any time fees are delinquent. 

Page 468

Item #18.



*********************** 

The 100 Watt HPS light that we currently charge $10.25 for is rated at 9,400 lumens.  The new LED's 

are rated at 8,330 lumens, however we know from experience that they are actually much brighter and 

the light broadcasts further.  For reference, Clay Electric charges $7.10 for a 5,000 lumen light and 

$10.35 for a 17,000 lumen light.   

 

*******End Background from February16, 2021 Meeting**************************** 

 

At the February 16, 2021 Council Meeting, Council directed staff to bring back an ordinance allowing 

the city to begin installing new security lights again at the proposed rate of $10.  Staff is presenting O-

05-2021 for Council approval on First Reading with the new LED lights at the existing rate of $10.25.  

The reason for this is because the $10.25 rate is part of the City’s rate tariff that was approved by the 

Florida Public Service Commission (PSC) in 2015.  Using the existing rate will eliminate the need to 

submit a different rate to the PSC for approval. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT 

See above discussion regarding return on investment. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Approve Ordinance O-05-2021 on first reading as to form only and set March 16, 2021 at 7:00 PM as 

the second and final public hearing. 
 

Page 469

Item #18.



O-05-2021 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA, 

AMENDING CHAPTER 90, ARTICLE III, DIVISION I, SECTION 90-61 TO 

ALLOW SECURITY AND NIGHT-LIGHTS UNDER CERTAIN 

CIRCUMSTANCES; PROVIDING REPEALER, SEVERABILITY, AND 

SETTING AN EFFECTIVE DATE  
 

WHEREAS, the City Council authorized changes for Section 90-61 Security and 

Night-lights on February 16, 2021 during a Council meeting which are set forth below. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF GREEN 

COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA AS FOLLOWS: 

 

SECTION 1. CODE AMENDED.  That Chapter 90 Article III Section 90-61 of 

the City Code is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 

CHAPTER 90 

Sec. 90-61. - Security and night-lights. 

 

(a) The city shall charge such owner or tenant a fee as follows for existing security or 

night-lights. The city will not install and maintain such lights or repair/replace parts 

other than light head, photo eye or lamp.  The city will only install new lights on 

existing poles. 

(1) 175-watt mercury vapor light or 100-watt high-pressure sodium light or 

LED light monthly charge: $10.25. 

(2) 400-watt mercury vapor light or 250-watt high-pressure 

sodium light monthly charge: $20.00. 

(3) Relocate light head, photo eye or lamp fee of $25.00 during normal 

business hours. 

(b) The requesting party shall agree in writing that any poles, lights, or accessories 

placed upon his property shall remain the sole property of the city, and the city shall 

have the right to remove such equipment at any time fees are delinquent. 

 

SECTION 2. REPEALER.  Any Ordinances or parts thereof in conflict with the 

provisions of this Ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 
 

SECTION 3. SEVERABILITY. The various parts, sections and clauses of this 

Ordinance are hereby declared severable. If any part, sentence, paragraph, section or 

clause is adjudged unconstitutional or invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, the 

remainder of the Ordinance shall not be affected thereby. 

 

SECTION 4. EFFECTIVE DATE.  Upon its adoption by the City Council, this 

ordinance shall become effective. 

 

Page 470

Item #18.



INTRODUCED AND APPROVED AS TO FORM ONLY ON THE FIRST 

READING BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GREEN COVE 

SPRINGS, FLORIDA, ON THIS 2ND DAY OF MARCH, 2021. 

 

      CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

 

 

              

      B. Van Royal, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

       

Erin West, City Clerk 

 

 

PASSED ON SECOND AND FINAL READING BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA, THIS 17TH DAY OF 

MARCH, 2021. 

 

      CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

 

 

              

      B. Van Royal, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

       

Erin West, City Clerk 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM ONLY: 

 

 

       

L.J. Arnold, III, City Attorney 

Page 471

Item #18.


	Top
	Item #1.	Swearing In of Citizen's Advisory Committee
	CAC Swearing In -ITEM-Staff-7512d91290844841aced3d76fc4f851b (12)

	Item #2.	Monarch City Proclamation
	Monarch City Proclamation

	Item #4.	Chief FBINAA Annual Training Conference
	ITEM-Staff-7512d91290844841aced3d76fc4f851b (1)
	20210217111806

	Item #5.	FPCA Summer Training Conference
	20210216150745
	ITEM-Staff-7512d91290844841aced3d76fc4f851b (1)

	Item #6.	Water SRF Amendment #1
	Design Loan Amendment #1 Staff Report
	Green Cove Springs DW100102 A1 - inc

	Item #7.	Scrivener’s Error to the April 16, 2019 Minutes
	3.2.21 ITEM-Staff-7512d91290844841aced3d76fc4f851b (9)
	2019-04-16- Minutes

	Item #8.	JUM, Sewer Lateral, COJ Piggyback
	JUM, Sewer Lateral Piggyback
	JUM Sewer Laterals Estimate
	FY 21 Renewal
	8258-19 Line Items
	8258-19  Specs 2016

	Item #9.	St Patrick's Day Road Closure Request
	Close Gum - ITEM-Staff-7512d91290844841aced3d76fc4f851b (8) (2)
	Application_Revised_Pet Adoption

	Item #10.	Mastry Invoices 1-4, HMGP
	Mastry - Yanmar Invoices 1-4 Staff Report
	Mastry Invoices 1-4 and Packing Slip

	Item #11.	MINS 2/02/2021
	2021-02-02 - Regular Minutes

	Item #12.	Land Dedication For New Roadway Adjacent to Ruby Street
	03.02.2021 - Staff Report - Land Dedication for new roadway
	Developer Agreement -Roadway Dedication
	RUBY ST SURVEYS

	Item #13.	Annual Non-Ad Valorem
	03.02.2021 - Staff Report - Approval of engagement letter to retain NGN
	Green Cove Springs_Annuals_2021

	Item #14.	Staff report KBT change order # 3
	Staff report KBT change order # 3
	20210225145335

	Item #15.	CDBG-CV Language Access Plan
	Staff Report - CDBG-CV LAP plan - 030221
	Pre-Application Appendix Four Factor Analysis Green Cove Springs
	Limited English Speaking Households Green Cove Springs

	Item #16.	CBDG-CV Grant Public Hearing 2021
	Staff Report CDBG-CV Public Hearing - 022521
	3x6 Legal 47425

	Item #17.	FMPA - March 2021
	FMPA Monthly Report March 2021-word
	BOD-Agenda-Package-2021-02-18 - March
	Strategic-Planning-2020-02-17 - March

	Item #18.	First Reading O-05-2021
	Staff Report - security lights - 021621
	Ordinance No. O-05-2021 - Amending Chapter 90 - Electric Utilities - Security and Night Lights

	Bottom

